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2021 in review: A renewed commitment to 
help more people realise their life ambitions

Our Government commissioners in the UK and 
Ireland are focused on delivering jobs and skills-
led recoveries, and we remain proud to play our 
part and work closely with them. Furthermore, 
regional administrations are in a stronger position 
to take on an increasingly important role as part 
of the delivery of skills, employability and justice 
services on the ground. As part of our commercial 
ambition, we therefore maintain a laser-like focus 
on building upon our strong regional presence.

The launch of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund,  
the significant boost to skills funding in the Autumn 
Budget Statement, and the healthy increase in  
key Departmental Budgets announced at the 
Comprehensive Spending Review help form a 
stable medium-term plan for the economy. Our 
Group has proven we are well-placed to play our 
part in delivering the economic recovery and 
‘levelling up’ agenda in the regions that need most 
support. Our experience and track-record in the 
employability, skills and justice fields can help us 
to provide the key tools in driving forward 
regional-focused growth – helping people into work, 
to develop new skills or make more positive choices.

2021 was also a year of important transition and 
opportunities for Seetec, most notably through 
the creation of Interventions Alliance, which has 
successfully transitioned from the Community 
Rehabilitation Companies (CRCs) model and is 
making great strides in rehabilitation within the 
justice system. Our Justice and Social Care division 
has a clear mission to play a positive societal role 
in changing lives for the better, helping people to 
turn a corner on their past so they achieve their 
full potential. I am particularly proud of the work 
being delivered at Eden House, the first new 
Approved Premises for women in England  
and Wales for 30 years, and we see exciting 
opportunities to grow the Justice and Social  
Care division in the coming years. 

Employee-owners across the Seetec Group work every day to enhance life chances. Many of our services users are 
working to overcome barriers preventing them from unlocking their full potential. Our role is to provide the 
communities we serve with the opportunity to achieve and succeed.

  “Our employee- 
  owners can be  
  proud of the vital  
  role they continue  
  to play as part of  
	 	 efforts	to		 	
  strengthen the 
resilience of communities hardest 
hit by the pandemic. As a Group, 
2022 will see us build on our solid 
foundations to take on new 
opportunities, whilst deepening our 
commitment to the people and 
businesses we support across the 
UK and Ireland.”

John Baumback, Group CEO
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We also worked effectively across the Group on 
several significant mobilisations in 2021, most 
notably on the Restart Scheme within the 
Employability and Health division. Our focus is now 
firmly on delivery, and over the life of our prime 
Restart Scheme contract and four sub-contracts, 
we expect to support up to 171,000 people. And 
through our Apprenticeships, Education and Skills 
division, we have helped people to gain the skills 
they need to realise their life’s ambitions. I’m 
particularly proud of the re-launch of Innovion, 
which has been a big success. In Ireland, the 
Seetec team has secured significant contracts to 
better support the communities we serve, and our 
relationships locally and with the Department of 
Social Protection remain strong.

Importantly, as the economy has slowly opened, 
despite the continued impact of the pandemic, we 
have gradually increased face-to-face engagement 
with customers, commissioners, colleagues and 
stakeholders. As a result, we were also able to 
organise a suite of successful events across the 
Group. For example, we held formal opening 
ceremonies for the CFO Activity Hubs with local 
MPs, visitors and commissioners celebrating these 
important services. Elsewhere, we held formal 
Ministerial visits at various Seetec Pluss sites,  
as well as a range of ‘feel-good’ events with 
participants in our communities. 

We have also now firmly embedded Employee 
Ownership within the Group, as we have all 
shifted to embrace a new working culture where 
colleagues share a greater sense of being able to 
contribute to the stewardship of our commercial 
direction. We will continue with the process of 
cementing this culture across the business.

In 2022, our commercial focus sees us exploring 
ways of expanding our footprint across the business 
divisions and examining exciting opportunities to 
enter new markets. There is a clear focus on our 
commercial aspirations, matched by a commitment 
to develop meaningful social value. Over the coming 
months, we will have social value pledges in place 
to show our commitment to the communities we 
serve, as we endeavour to close the disadvantage 
gap and support social mobility by helping those 
who need it most. 

I am incredibly proud of the work we are delivering 
across the Group, and the genuine difference we 
are making to people’s lives, and I look forward  
to building on the success of last year to grow our 
footprint in order to help build more resilient 
communities in the process.

John Baumback, Group CEO
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2,063 
Current 
employees

65,320 
The total number of individuals 
supported through all of our 
combined services across the 
Group in 2021

2,502
The number of learners that 
started their apprenticeship, 
traineeships and adult 
education course in 2021

12,031
The total number of 
individuals referred onto 
Interventions Alliance 
services in 2021

5,814
The total number of 
individuals supported 
through the JobPath 
scheme in 2021

2021 in numbers

44,973
The total number* of individuals supported through 
our employability and health services in 2021

*These metrics are representative of contracts where either Seetec Pluss or Pluss are acting 
as a prime provider, not those through which we are operating as a sub-contractor.
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Geographical footprint
Our services provided through our Employability and Health, Irish, Justice and Social Care and Apprenticeships, 
Education and Skills business divisions cover many regions in the UK and Ireland.

Apprenticeships, Education 
and Skills
As an experienced learning provider, we 
deliver apprenticeship training and adult 
education across multiple regions in England 
and Scotland.

In 2021, the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency awarded Seetec Outsource additional 
National Adult Education Budget (AEB) 
funding to deliver vocational training to 
individuals aged 19 and over across the North 
West and South West of England.

Justice and Social Care
At Interventions Alliance, we deliver  
life-transforming solutions to help people 
overcome barriers, build better futures and 
foster personal wellbeing, across various UK 
locations, including an Approved Premises in 
Bristol and several CFO Activity Hubs (based 
in Manchester, Warrington, Liverpool, Bristol, 
and Chatham, with satellite provision at   
St Leonards-on-Sea).

Employability and Health
We deliver a wide range of employability, health 
and wellbeing services, empowering thousands 
of people to move towards and into work 
(including Work and Health Programme, 
Restart and JETS scheme delivery).

Pluss, an award-winning independent 
Community Interest Company (CIC) that 
provides specialist support to inspire people 
of all abilities to achieve work and a career, 
forms a key part of this division too. It is a 
social enterprise working to ensuring nobody 
is left behind in our society.

Ireland
The JobPath contract we deliver covers   
the Dublin, West, North and North West, 
Midlands and North East regions.

We also deliver the Regional Employment 
Service in Westmeath and Longford.



Proud to be employee-owned

When the transition to employee ownership was 
announced in January 2020, the primary objective 
was to work with colleagues across the group and 
together establish new employee voice structures. 
Now, more than a year on, the Employee Council 
and Seetec’s senior leaders have created a solid 
employee ownership framework, ensuring that the 
employee voice is represented in key decision making. 
Including colleagues in important business decisions 
and discussions has brought significant benefits 
to the business and created more robust and 
appropriate solutions than we could have hoped for.

Our ambition however was not to settle for “good 
progress”, but to be leaders in the employee 
ownership space. We have seen first-hand the 
benefits for the individuals that use our services, 
as well as within our business when we include the 
unified employee voice. Our people know our clients 
and communities well – it is clear that bringing their 
expertise and wisdom into our business decision 
making process has led to better outcomes.

Seetec is proud to be employee-owned, with our colleagues owning the 
majority of the business though a specialist Trust acting on behalf of all 
employee owners. We also have an elected employee council (see page 27) 
and	employee	trustee	director,	who	serve	on	the	Trust’s	board	as	a	unification	
of all the voices and opinions of the business. While Seetec’s senior leadership 
team (see page 26) is responsible for the day-to-day management of our 
business, our employee ownership structure gives our employee owners   
a meaningful stake in our business and a say in how it is run. 

  “We have a say  
  in how services  
  are delivered  
  and that is   
  extremely   
  valuable, as 
we are the ones that are on 
the ground. When I see 
success stories in the local 
newspaper or on social media, 
I am proud and can say, I was 
part of that.” 

Sandra McKie,
Seetec Pluss
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We created 60 employee ownership champions,  
10 elected employee council members and  
one employee trustee director. Our elected 
representatives sit on operational, strategic  
and governance boards, alongside the working 
groups and discussions linking colleagues and 
senior leaders across the business. 

We have used working groups as a preferred 
approach to inform decision making, inviting 
colleagues to participate and share ideas on  
a wide range of topics, including social value, 
health and wellbeing, knowledge management, 
group strategy, equality and diversity, and 
inclusion and operational delivery. 

The value of colleague contribution has been 
significant in leading to improved business 
solutions, increased employee engagement 
scores and reduced employee turnover. It has 
also contributed to Seetec achieving a highly 
commended CIPD People Award, Investors in 
People Gold Accreditation, Great Place to Work 
Accreditation and the Employee Ownership 
Associations Employee Wellbeing award. 

  
“During the pandemic and periods of 
time under lockdown, the message that 
has come through continually is that 
Seetec is not just a business focused on 
delivering a contract – we also care 
about the people who work for us. The 
message is that we want well rounded, 
healthy (mental and physical) colleagues 
who are proud to be part of the Group, 
has	continually	filtered	down	over	the	
last 18 months. I personally 
feel more than an employee 
– the business treats me 
like a valued owner.”

“Communication is key for me and for a 
successful	business,	this	has	significantly	
improved since employee ownership 
came	into	effect	at	Seetec.	The	working	
groups have been an excellent addition 
to our company too. It’s important that  
 we share our interests,  
 have great discussions,  
 have fun planning activities  
 and be part of something  
 else outside our day jobs!”

 “I have seen a huge   
 change and I appreciate  
 the changes leaders have  
 made so that we are all  
 accountable to each other  
rather than it being an “us” and “them” 
culture. It has reinforced that we do 
important jobs, and we are valued.” 

“I really appreciate the 
openness, honesty and 
sometimes vulnerability 
of the Board and the fact 
that we have the colleague 
catch ups where no question 
is	fobbed	off	as	being	immaterial.	There	
is respect for each person and what they 
contribute, and the acknowledgement 
that we are all in this together is loud 
and clear.”
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Principles of employee ownership
In	our	first	year	of	employee	
ownership, we worked with our 
colleagues to create a transparent 
structure	where	the	unified		
employee voice is represented   
and heard across the organisation.
  

Hear from our employee owners about the changes they have 
seen because of our transition into employee ownership:



Review of the year: Apprenticeships, 
Education and Skills
Apprenticeships and training opportunities will be key to levelling up regional economies and closing the disadvantage 
gap as we emerge from the pandemic, and Seetec’s Apprenticeships, Education and Skills business has a vital role  
to play in supporting a skills-led recovery from Covid-19.

Despite ongoing restrictions and further challenges for the business, 2021 has nevertheless seen us strengthen   
our skills provision in key sectors and regions as we begin to implement our division growth strategy.

Education and Skills

Our Education and Skills business had a successful 
year in 2021, with the renewal of contracts to 
deliver adult education and training across 
Greater Manchester and Liverpool City Region, 
new national AEB and traineeships funding awards 
and a contract awarded by Devon County Council 
to deliver training opportunities to individuals and 
businesses adversely impacted by the pandemic. 
This funding will enable us to extend our footprint 
across the North West and South West of England 
and pursue our ambitious plans for regional growth.

In addition, our English for Speakers of Other 
Languages (ESOL) provision has gone from strength 
to strength, with the launch of a new Academy in 
Liverpool to replicate the success of the one we 
launched in Manchester in 2021, as well as additional 
outreach projects to deliver ESOL in the community.

We have also appointed a new National Director 
for Education and Skills. Jason Hurn oversees our 
regional growth strategy as we continue to expand 
our offer across new geographies and the regions 
in which we already operate.

Apprenticeships 

Across our apprenticeships business we are seeing 
signs of recovery, with furloughed apprentices 
returning to work and employers stepping up their 
apprenticeship recruitment.

We continue to review and update our apprenticeship 
offer to align with sector needs, and have played a 
key role in developing new apprenticeship standards 
for the logistics industry to address a nationwide 
shortage of qualified HGV drivers.

Through Innovion, the specialist arm of our business 
for higher-level technical training and apprenticeships, 
we have also been able to expand our offer for 
the engineering, manufacturing and technology 
sectors. This includes new aviation engineering 
apprenticeships, which will help to address a loss 
of skills and experience within a sector heavily 
impacted by the pandemic.

We have also appointed a new National Director 
of Sector Skills. Lloyd DeVal oversees our strategy 
for sector growth as we continue to develop the 
apprenticeships arm of our business.

Case study: 
Helping 
individuals 
reskill for a 
new career
“It took a lot of courage to leave 
the job I’d been doing for 15 years 
but it’s the best thing I’ve done. My 
friends were surprised I was doing 
an apprenticeship and a well-paid 
apprenticeship at that – now they 
are all interested.” 

Nigel Bennett, 
LGV driver apprentice, Breedon
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Social value delivered

In 2021, our English for Speakers of Other 
Languages (ESOL) provision expanded to a include 
a ‘Stay and Play’ community outreach programme 
in Liverpool. This is aimed at women with young 
children who would otherwise struggle to access 
courses held in city centre locations due to cultural 
barriers or childcare commitments, and we are 
replicating this model in other areas to ensure 
provision is widely available where needed. 

Our adult education provision also supported 
hundreds of individuals whose employment had 
been impacted by the pandemic, enabling them to 
upskill or reskill through vocational training in key 
sectors such as health and social care, logistics, 
construction and digital skills. 

In addition, we have helped hundreds of young 
people to access employment in a particularly 
challenging labour market. Our traineeship 
provision for 16 to 24 year-olds has supported 
young people across the North West to build the 
skills and confidence they need to move into a first 
job or apprenticeship, while our apprenticeships 
continue to act as a driver for social mobility, 
creating ladders of opportunity for individuals 
from all socio-economic backgrounds.

The	driving	force	behind	our	efforts	to	support	a	skills-led	recovery	is	our	
commitment to inclusion. We empower individuals from diverse communities 
and all socio-economic backgrounds to take greater advantage of the education 
opportunities available to them so they can realise their life ambitions. This is 
complemented by our Adult Education Budget (AEB) footprint as we continue 
to help people develop the skills they need to secure employment.

Case study: 
Supporting career 
development
“I’d always assumed that 
apprenticeships were for school 
leavers, or someone looking for 
their	first	job.	I	now	understand	
that they are about building 
knowledge and skills, and it’s an 
opportunity to move to the next 
stage of your career. This can open 
so many doors for the future.” 

Sevjan Hassan, 
Digital marketing apprentice, 

Waltham Forest Council

  “Investing in high quality  
  apprenticeships, education  
  and skills provision will  
  help to address regional  
  inequalities where   
  individuals have had  
  limited life opportunities  
  in the past. A focus on 
the skills agenda more broadly is vital as work 
continues to confront the social and economic 
consequences of the pandemic on key sectors 
of the economy.  
“Prioritising the need for a sector and regional 
approach, there is a commitment to strengthen 
technical skills through our specialist arm 
Innovion and a relentless focus on accessing 
growth opportunities that aim to deliver a 
lasting impact on the businesses, learners 
and wider local communities that we serve.”

Suki Binning,
Executive Director, Justice, Social Care and Skills
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Aims and ambitions for 2022

Within Education and Skills our focus will be on 
supporting local communities in the North and 
South West of England through high quality adult 
education, vocational skills training and traineeships 
which provide a gateway into employment or 
further education. We will continue to pursue 
funding opportunities that enable us to grow our 
presence in these key regions where Seetec already 
delivers vital services and support.

Growth within our apprenticeships 
business will be focussed on sectors 
that are important to the UK economy. 
These include:
 Aviation, transport and logistics;

 Advanced engineering;

 Public services; and

 Professional services, digital and media.

Our aims and ambitions for 2022 
include:
 Progressing with the relaunch of Innovion, a new  

 model for technical education which places   
 employers at the heart of the skills agenda,   
 helping to respond to their critical workforce gaps;

 Further development of higher-level technical   
 apprenticeships for sectors important to the   
 UK economy;

 Working with industry to address critical   
 skills gaps alongside workforce resilience;

 Exploring opportunities to lead on AI and   
 data apprenticeships;

 Building and maintaining relationships with   
 key  stakeholders in our target sectors and   
 regions; and

 Investing in quality, people, learning    
 technology and our delivery capability.  

As an experienced provider of apprenticeships 
and training, we are also committed to providing 
thought leadership within the skills sector. We will 
continue to work with Government and top-tier 
local authorities to pursue high quality skills 
development as a driver of economic growth, 
competitiveness and productivity, while creating 
opportunities and improving access to education 
and training for individuals in all the regions in 
which we operate.

Case study: 
Boosting language 
skills to support 
employability and 
community integration
“The support I received from my tutor 
was amazing, and this course has 
opened the door to new opportunities 
which I’m really excited about. I would 
recommend the course to anyone 
who wants to improve their English 
and	find	a	job	they	love.”	

Amelia Castelluccio, 
ESOL learner, Manchester

For the remainder of 2022, our priority is to realise the aims and ambitions 
set out in our strategy for sector and regional growth, while supporting a 
skills-led recovery from Covid-19.
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Review of the year: Employability and Health
2021	was	another	incredible	year	in	which	the	employability	and	health	division	has	experienced	significant	growth.	
Last year, we empowered over 40,000 people to move towards and into work and recruited over 900 new employees.

Despite a year of social-distancing and lockdowns, our colleagues worked with passion to create a sense of hope for 
every	participant.	We	offered	a	hybrid	of	face-to-face	and	digital	services	so	that	everyone	can	access	our	services	in		
a way that feels supportive and safe.

Seetec Pluss

In 2021, we successfully bid for and launched the 
Restart Scheme in South West England. Our Restart 
Scheme will support over 106,000 people in the 
South-West with a further 65,000 people supported 
on sub-contracts in London, Central, East and 
North West England.

In October 2020, we launched Work and Health 
Programme – JETS. A year on, we’ve supported 
over 10,500 people to move back into work. Due 
to its success, JETS has been extended until March 
2023 and will help 44,000 people during the 
lifetime of the programme.

Our Work and Health programme continued to 
support people with health and disability needs with 
over 5,000 people moving into sustainable work. 

And although coming to an end this year, our 
Work Routes contract has helped over 600 people 
move towards and into work.

We also offered careers advice and guidance to 
over 1,200 people through our National Careers 
Service in Cornwall, Devon and Somerset.

Pluss

In 2021, our specialist learning disability and mental 
health employment services provided employment 
and wellbeing support to over 800 people. We also 
launched a new autism employment service in 
Plymouth helping people into employment over 
16 hours. Small but successful, we’re now working 
in partnership with Jobcentre Plus and Plymouth 
City Council to expand the service. 

Our ‘Workfit’ mental health retention programme 
helped 89% of our participants to remain healthy, well 
and productive at work across Southern England. 

Our Health Works for Cornwall team empowered 
250 people to reduce social isolation and take ‘safe 
steps’ to develop social skills, resilience and wellbeing. 

In Cornwall, Devon, Somerset and West Yorkshire, 
our Building Better Opportunities (BBO) teams 
offered a lifeline to over 2,000 people, helping them 
to build confidence, hope, and move towards work 
and training. 

Now in its third year, our Social Prescribing service 
in Cornwall helped over 1,000 people to access 

financial, housing, emotional and wellbeing support. 
Working with seven GP practices, we have diversified 
to include digital and in-work social prescribing 
services.  

Having navigated the challenging times of Covid-19, 
our manufacturing business has emerged as strong 
as ever with many new business opportunities on 
the horizon.
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Social value delivered

Financially it benefits the exchequer too - 
increasing income tax, reducing both benefit 
payments and demand on over-stretched health 
and social care services. 

Throughout the pandemic, we were overwhelmed 
by acts of kindness demonstrated by our colleagues 
within the division. This included volunteering at 
local foodbanks, raising money for local charities, 
and delivering food and gifts. 

In addition, our partnership with CHAOS 
community TV offered “a light in dark times”. 
Reaching thousands of people through live ‘feel 
good’, employability and wellbeing broadcasts,  
we helped people to stay connected and continue 
their journey towards employment throughout 
the pandemic. 

Our integration team continued to work 
collaboratively with partners, LEPS and local 
authorities, identifying gaps, creating solutions and 
ensuring our services responded to local needs.

In partnership with the Institute of Employability 
Professionals (IEP), over 900 of our employees 
completed our market-leading sector induction 
with a further 750 enrolled on the IEP Level 2 and 
3 employability qualifications. 

Being in work gives people a reason to get up in the morning, a chance to 
meet others and be included within their local community. Having a job also 
provides an income to pay for a home, warmth and food.

Case study: 
“I felt like giving up on 
myself, but you were 
there constantly and 
wouldn’t let me give up.”
Simon left his job as a Sales 
Assistant during the pandemic. 
He was battling depression and 
anxiety and even came down with 
Covid-19, but he was determined 
to get back into work. With the 
support from the Work and Health 
programme, he found work in a 
hotel. “You’re amazing and have 
given me a sense of direction. You 
figured	out	what	I	wanted	and	how	
I needed to get there.”

Case study: 
“My time  
on JETS has 
been life-
changing  
for me.”
Stuart was furloughed and then 
subsequently made redundant from 
his job in hospitality, as a result of the 
pandemic. He felt low and confused 
at what to do next. After being 
supported on the JETS scheme, Stuart 
has started a brand new career in 
care and is learning ‘new life skills 
that he never had before.’
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We will:
 Deliver social value by creating opportunities   

 for people who face significant barriers to   
 employment, including individuals with health  
 and disability needs, and young people not in   
 education, training or employment;

 Expand and diversify our employability, health  
 and wellbeing services in existing geographical   
 areas, particularly areas where we have   
 recently secured a footprint such as London   
 and Central England;

 Develop services with a focus on career   
 progression and earnings increase, in-work   
 support, self-employment, and careers advice   
 and guidance;

 Ensure we meet Restart Scheme targets and   
 maximise the number of people we support   
 into sustainable employment to be the best   
 prime and sub-prime partner that we can be;

 Continue to deliver BBO contracts until they   
 finish in 2023, whilst piloting the Community   
 Renewal Fund service in Somerset to ensure   
 we are ready for the new Shared Prosperity   
 Fund; and

 Aim to secure contract extensions to our Work  
 and Health Programme disadvantaged people.

After	a	period	of	significant	growth,	we	will	invest	time	to	ensure	our	business	
division is aligned to the Group’s regional growth strategy and will continue to 
collaborate with local stakeholders to improve the life chances of the communities 
who need our help the most.

Aims and ambitions for 2022

Case study: 
“My Change Coach has 
given me the support to 
engage with professionals 
to obtain the correct help.” 
Sylwia moved to England, from Poland, 
when she was 25. She married and 
had children but found herself living 
next	to	‘difficult	neighbours’.	This,	
alongside language problems, an 
unrecognised dyslexia diagnosis and 
the pressures of family life all resulted 
in a breakdown. 

She turned to Pluss’ Positive People 
project in Somerset: “In the past I 
struggled to leave the house so it was   
a big relief when Gill took me to the 
Dyslexia Assessment.” 

“2021 saw our Employability and Health division support over 40,000 people 
to improve their health and wellbeing, and move into meaningful and 
sustainable employment. For this to be accomplished whilst continuing to 
navigate the unpredictable waters of Covid-19, whilst achieving considerable 
growth	as	a	result	of	significant	new	contract	wins	in	all	of	our	key	geographies,	
really showcases the resilience, passion and commitment of our colleagues, 
partners and stakeholders. I look forward to seeing what we can achieve in 
2022 to ensure no one is left behind.” 

Chris Harrison, Executive Director, Employability and Health
Seetec Group In Review | 2021 14



Eden House 

Eden House, the first new approved premises in 30 
years, opened its doors in June 2021, representing 
a valuable addition to the national estate. Your 
Ambition, the charity arm of Seetec, was appointed 
by Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service 
(HMPPS) to manage Eden House, with Interventions 
Alliance taking on operational responsibility.

Eden House provides an inclusive, trauma-informed 
approach to meet residents’ individual rehabilitation 
and resettlement needs. The skilled all-female 
staff team, supported by local partners deliver a 
range of interventions to help residents overcome 
multiple, complex personal barriers in order to 
reintegrate into the community. The women are 
enabled to build their self-esteem and a positive 
self-identity, reconnect with family, find 
employment and a permanent home. 

In running Eden House as an independent approved 
premises, we have extended our reach into the 
provision of residential accommodation, gaining 
expertise and establishing a platform from which 
we can explore opportunities to open new facilities.

Break the Cycle 

The Diocese of Canterbury has commissioned 
Interventions Alliance to work alongside and support 
ex-offenders, accommodated in a designated 
property, following release from HMP Elmley. 

The aim is to help residents to improve their health, 
wellbeing and life skills, engage with mentors to 
access broader services and overcome personal 
barriers so they are able to move towards 
independent living. Residents are offered one  
to one and group support to utilise the 
opportunity presented by having their own  
secure accommodation, to make the changes  
they need to improve the quality of their lives  
and escape the cycle of reoffending.

‘Break the Cycle’ demonstrates how we have engaged 
with new, non-justice commissioners, a faith group 
in terms of this context, in meeting the support 
needs of those in residential accommodation.  
The provision of residential accommodation, 
gaining expertise and establishing a platform, 
provides a basis to explore opportunities to open 
new facilities.

Our priority remains to work on the new vision and strategy that will combine our knowledge, skills and talents across 
the justice and social care sectors, to establish services and interventions that help overcome the barriers holding 
people back from transforming their lives for the better. Interventions Alliance has a vital role to play in bridging the 
gap between the criminal justice and social care sectors.

2021	was	a	challenging	but	exciting	time	for	Interventions	Alliance.	Against	the	backdrop	of	reunification	and	ensuring	
the safe exit of the Community Rehabilitation Company (CRC), mobilisation of new and innovative contracts have begun.

Review of the year: Justice and Social Care 

The	official	opening	of	the	Manchester	CFO	
Activity Hub with (left to right): Marek Musiol, 
Lead Manager (Research and Statistics) for 
Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service 
Co-Financing Organisation; Chris Edwards, 
Regional Probation Director for Greater 
Manchester Probation Service; and Suki 
Binning, Executive Director, Justice, Social 
Care and Skills.
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The Behaviour Change     
and Support Services Unit 

The Behaviour Change and Support Services  
Unit (BCSSU) was established to consolidate our 
approach to the delivery of behavioural change 
programmes, in response to the dynamic nature 
of Interventions Alliance’s contracts. BCSSU is a 
hybrid unit that includes an aspect of the Community 
Development Directorate. A contract Community 
Interventions Development Officer (CIDO) sits 
alongside operational management to support 
the unit’s work. 

The unit will oversee the portfolio of ‘smaller’ 
interventions-based contract delivery. Community 
development holds the responsibility for organic 
development within the organisation and is tasked 
with supporting our customers, including the 
commissioners, service users and communities 
that we serve by delivering innovative and new 
interventions whilst responding to gaps in 
provision.

Professional Standards     
and Development Team

The Professional Standards and Development 
team was formed at the commencement of 
Interventions Alliance out of the Excellence and  
Effectiveness Team, which had operated under 
the previous CRC contract.

Whilst the name has changed and some of its 
activities, the focus of the Professional Standards 
and Development team remains the same, notably 
to enable the continuous improvement of the 
quality of our service provision.

Our key success over the last year has been the 
continued provision of these services, through  
the pandemic, and at the end of the CRC contract. 
During the successful transition to the Probation 
Service of both staff and quality improvement 
practices, the formation of the new team and the 
set up of new provision within the first quarter  
of the year, there was a relentless focus on 
implementing the overarching strategy.

Review of the year: 
Justice and Social Care 

Case study:  
Supporting an   
ex-offender to build   
a better future

“I was struggling to get by in 
life, but that’s all changed since 
completing the course and 
getting a new job. I am no 
longer invisible at home and 
can hold my head up high.”

Richard,
Former service user
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CFO Activity Hubs

Part-funded by the European Social Fund.  
With our aim of being a warm, welcoming and 
supportive environment for some of the most 
hard to reach participants to access a range of 
holistic activities began taking referrals in May 
2021. Opening our doors in June 2021 across the 
South East, South West and North West, we have 
already offered a range of support services linked 
to human citizenship, social inclusion and ‘wrap 
around’ support to strengthen community ties 
and engagement with universal services.  

The environment at each hub is carefully   
curated by staff and participants to be unique  
and compliment our intended vision of an 
inclusive space. Our hubs are brought to life by 
ensuring the space used by staff and participants 
is comfortable to encourage the best possible 
engagement. To date four of our hubs have been 
formally opened by a significant member of our 
network, including: Sally-Ann Hart, MP for 
Hastings; Tracey Crouch, MP for Medway; and 
most recently Amy Rees, Director General for  
the Probation Service.

Commissioned Rehabilitation Service Delivery 

As part of the reunified Probation Service, in June 
2021 we started to deliver services for men on 
probation linked to accommodation in: the North 
West; South West; Kent, Surrey and Sussex (KSS); 
and the East of England. We also deliver Education, 
Training and Employment (ETE) provision in the 
South West, KSS and the East of England. Personal 
Wellbeing support is delivered in Kent and Cheshire. 
Mobilisation was a challenging time with members 
of our own CRCs TUPE’ed in and out as well as the 
transfer of staff from other organisations, alongside 
recruitment. Despite higher than contracted 
referral volumes across our accommodation 
services, the commitment and resilience of all 
staff working across the provision has been 
outstanding.  

The	driving	force	behind	our	efforts	to	provide	and	establish	services	and	
interventions for recovery is our commitment to inclusion. We empower 
individuals from diverse communities and all backgrounds to overcome   
the barriers holding them back from transforming their lives for the better.

Social value delivered

Case study: 
We received positive 
feedback from 
participants who had 
been on the new 
behavioural change 
programmes

Participants wanted to share how 
the service had helped them:

“Learning to be mindful and to  
be in control of my emotions has 
helped greatly in the work place 
and with my family.”

Participant A

“I’m beginning to work on my 
boundaries.”

Participant B
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“Getting the 
rehabilitation of 
individuals coming  
to the ending their 
custodial sentence 
right is critical, not 
only to help those 
concerned to make

positive life choices after serving time, 
but to also help to build safer communities 
in the future. By bridging the gap between 
the justice and social care sector, 
Interventions Alliance continues to focus 
on what services can best meet the 
challenge of breaking the vicious cycle   
of crime.”

Suki Binning,
Executive Director, Justice, 

Social Care and Skills

Aims and ambitions for 2022

It is our ambition to draw on a unique research base 
and on-the-ground experience to address areas of 
critical need. Our priority is to address and prevent 
the long-term social care challenges in the criminal 
justice system. 

Our focus in 2022 will be on:

 New services: CFO Activity Hubs, provision   
 of residential accommodation, learning and   
 development provision of training to approved  
 premises staff.

 New markets: We will continue to deliver   
 a service to unconvicted perpetrators of abuse.

 New commissioners: Police (Domestic   
 Abuse intervention/Compulsive Obsessive   
 Behavioural Intervention), The CFO, Prisons   
 (older persons intervention – HMP Risley) and   
 faith groups (Break the Cycle).

 New geographies: We have extended our   
 footprint beyond the South East, South West   
 and Wales, to move into the North West and   
 the East of  England (i.e. North West CFO Activity  
 Hubs / Dynamic Framework Accommodation   
 Services, and the East of England Dynamic   
 Framework Accommodation services too).

A key priority for Interventions Alliance is our growth 
into the areas of supported accommodation for a 
range of vulnerable groups. It is highly likely that 
some of the specialist interventions that sit within 
BCSSU will be applied to those accommodation 
contracts to maximise successful outcomes.  

We	will	continue	to	build	on	the	first	year	of	our	delivery	as	Interventions	Alliance	to	strengthen	our	position	in	the	
justice and social care sectors. By investing resources in targeted interventions, our aim is to prevent the revolving 
door	of	reoffending.
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Seetec Ireland is proud to play a key role through 
the delivery of JobPath. The team continues to work 
closely with the Department of Social Protection 
to confront the challenges that have faced the 
labour market during the pandemic. It is important 
to remember that JobPath is the Irish Government’s 
first ever country-wide labour market activation 
service. Since 2015, there have been over 170,000 
JobPath starts and in 2021 alone, 19,084 people, 
unemployed for 12 months or more, were supported 
into employment.

Last year our organisation was recognised as an 
organisation that empowers its workforce after 
being certified under the Great Place to Work trust 
index with almost an 80% satisfaction rating. The 
colleagues that make up the business are our 
greatest asset, but we can never be complacent 
about maintaining a working environment that is 
committed to listening and improving together as 
employee owners.  

It was also welcome news that the Department  
of Social Protection awarded us the new Regional 
Employment Service opportunity in Longford and 
Westmeath, the tender round took place during 
last summer. Through JobPath and the Department 
of Justice’s European Social Funding programme, 
Welcome to Work, which works with migrants to 

help them find work, we have already supported 
13,230 people in the local area and look forward 
to building on that number through the Regional 
Employment Service. We understand the complex 
barriers faced by those seeking employment in the 
local area, including rural isolation and digital 
exclusion. 

Building on the delivery of the JobPath contract, 
the National Employment Service tender is a great 
opportunity to build on the track record built up 
by the business as our employee owners work 
relentlessly to help people achieve their work 
ambitions. In line with the Irish Government’s 
Economic Recovery Plan, the Pandemic 
Unemployment Payment scheme will be gradually 
reduced on a tapered basis until February 2022, and 
by the end of the year unemployment is forecast 
to by just over nine per cent. There is never room for 
complacency in the labour market, so we welcome 
the National Employment Service tender opportunity.

To build on the capabilities of our business, we 
were delighted to welcome Paul O’Toole, who 
joined us as a Non-Executive Director last year. 
Paul is a former Irish public servant, having been the 
Chief Executive of the Higher Education Authority 
and SOLAS – the state agency for further education 
and training. His knowledge of the skills sector 

has been a welcome injection of increased depth 
of experience that the executive team can draw 
on going forward. 

The commitments made by the Irish Government 
to boost higher education and create training 
opportunities that align with key areas of the 
economy, places for learners to learn green skills and 
increased apprenticeship numbers more broadly, 
mean there are a range of employability and skills 
opportunities for the business to pursue. The 
ambition of our business is not only to further our 
commercial ambitions, but to also extend opportunity 
and prosperity to the communities we serve.

There is growing optimism in Ireland as work continues to manage the recovery from Covid-19, despite the social and 
economic fallout from the last 18 months. The Central Bank believes the recovering economy will create 160,000 new 
jobs by 2023 and the unemployment rate has continued on a downward trend in late 2021. This spurred the European 
Commission to double its Irish growth forecast for 2022. 

Review of the year: Seetec Ireland
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“As an experienced 
provider of 
employability and 
skills opportunities, 
we want to extend 
our footprint to 
support more 
communities in

Ireland to help people realise their full 
potential. The changing demands of 
employers means more must be done to 
keep pace with the skills needed to ensure 
the Irish economy continues to be competitive, 
matching demand in the European Single 
Market and responding to wider domestic 
priorities. 

“Helping people develop new skills and 
sustained employment is life-changing.   
Our employee owners are committed to 
driving forward social impact to build more 
resilient communities that are able to take 
advantage of the labour market needs   
of the future.”

Karl Milne,
 Executive Director, Ireland

Review of the year: Seetec Ireland
Employer Testimonials
“In recent years engaging staff has been a real challenge in a competitive labour market. Finding 
the right skills and attitude mix is not easy. Seetec has been a great partner and resource for us as 
they did all the skills matching, shortlisting and organising the interviews. What we got were candidates 
of a calibre tailored to our need and who wanted to work. The resulting successful placement ratio 
was better than we’d previously been able to achieve. The key to all this has been communication 
and the Employer Services Consultant has been a great help. Seetec is my go-to service when I’m 
looking for new staff.”

“I can see why Seetec holds an awful lot of value for an awful lot of people. Candidates don’t all 
have the same communications skills, and I think it’s important, if you’re seriously looking for a job, 
to have a service where someone can talk you through the whole recruitment process, how to best 
present yourself and how to attract the employer. We’re now in a position in the job market where 
the employer is selling itself to the employee, but we still need to see candidates that can really sell 
themselves to employers at the same time.”

Client Testimonials
“I wish to express my gratitude for having you as my employment advisor. Over the past few months, 
you have given me encouragement, advice and help when I have needed it in a very caring and 
positive way. You have a gentle way of pushing me forward to achieve my goals. Thank you, for all 
your help and encouragement and helping me achieve my goals.”

“Thank you very much for all the help and assistance you’ve given me over the last year, you really did 
help me think about my future and I genuinely can’t thank you enough for the help and motivation, 
I just want to make sure you know I appreciate the extra push you gave me, I won’t waste it.”

“They have just contacted me, and I am to start tomorrow. Thank you so much for all your time, 
patience and motivation in helping me to stay on track, to develop new skills and to keep the end 
goal in mind. I am very grateful for every bit of help that you gave me.”
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More broadly, when helping clients into work,  
we take care to engage with employers who we 
genuinely believe will be good for them to work 
for, with a focus on providing them with 
sustainable employment. We have also played  
a part in helping a number of small businesses  
to reopen and get back on their feet, finding  
them the workforce that they urgently needed. 

At the end of last year we conducted an 
independent client survey, to gauge thoughts  
on our performance during the pandemic. The 
highest satisfaction scores we received were for 
office staff friendliness, receiving an appointment 
at a reasonable time, convenient opening hours, 
ability to connect remotely and advisor relationships 
and meetings. We take considerable pride in our 
relationships with our clients and the broader 
communities we serve, particularly for those clients 
who have continued to feel isolated during the 
pandemic.

Despite the challenges posed by Covid-19,  
in 2021 we managed to continue our tradition  
of voluntary support as it is a core part of our 
approach towards delivering greater social value. 
For example, in September last year colleagues 
from Galway spent the day helping Voices for 
Down Syndrome, which provides speech and 
language therapy for children and young adults 
with Down Syndrome. Using one of their Seetec 
volunteering days, colleagues took part in the 
charity’s ‘Lots of Socks’ campaign, packing 1,088 
pairs of socks that had been knitted throughout 
the year. As the economy opens up further,  
we plan to ramp up our volunteering activity, 
deepening our support in the communities  
we serve.

Social value delivered
With	the	pandemic	continuing	to	cause	significant	disruption	to	people’s	lives	
throughout 2021, we have been living our social values as we play our part  
in helping deliver Ireland’s recovery. Most notably, we have helped people 
into work in key public health roles, such as providing scanners and swabbers 
for Dublin airport when they were struggling with recruitment, and found 
security guards at vaccination centres within short turnaround times.
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Our key priorities for 2022:

 Build on our status as a Great Place to Work with 
more opportunities for employee owners to help 
shape the future direction of the business; 

 Manage the mobilisation of the Regional 
Employment Service programme in Longford 
and Westmeath; 

 Successfully deliver the transition of the  
JobPath programme to the new National 
Employment Service;

 Build new employer relationships to complement 
the existing base of over 3,000, focusing on job 
brokering and wider engagement to source 
candidates with the right transferable skills to fill 
vacancies;

 Support the recovery of the Irish economy as  
an experienced employability and skills provider, 
upskilling local communities and helping those 
furthest away from finding work into jobs; and

 Develop more regional partnerships by   
building the capacity of key partners and 
stakeholders as part of our existing   
supply chain. 

A more diverse labour market and wider pool  
of skills training opportunities matters, because  
it will best prepare the Irish economy to not only 
address pandemic specific challenges that have 
manifested during the lockdowns and impacted 
sectors, but also help strengthen communities  
to withstand future country-wide shocks. Seetec 
Ireland’s employee owners are committed to 
supporting community and wider business 
resilience to build a more inclusive economy  
that helps more people to succeed.  

2021 provided solid foundations for the business to build on as the recovery in Ireland opens up the possibility to 
expand our footprint and pursue more ways to empower communities. The labour shortages in key sectors mean the 
focus on reskilling and upskilling in areas where there are gaps,  will become an increasing priority to support growth 
and productivity levels in the Irish economy. The business will also be looking at diversifying to meet future 
employability and skills needs to match the ambition of our commissioners.   

Aims and ambitions for 2022
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Seetec delivers services to central governments, 
local and devolved authorities, non-departmental 
public bodies, Police and Crime Commissioners 
and employers. We work in partnerships with  
our commissioners and local community-based 
organisations to achieve the best outcomes for 
the individuals and communities we support. We 
focus on three core markets: Employability and 
Health, Justice and Social Care and Apprenticeships, 
Education and Skills. We deliver services in the  
UK and the Republic of Ireland.

Most of our services are delivered in partnership 
with government, funded by taxpayers, to the most 
vulnerable in society. To ensure we meet our 
customers’ highest standards and provide ethical, 
responsible and sustainable solutions, all of our 
services adhere to our values and our social 
values. Our employee-owned business model 
offers governments, employers, partners and 
communities an alternative to traditional business 
models, one which places people and communities 
at the heart of public service delivery.  

We work closely with a diverse range of delivery 
partners, from large multinationals to hyper-local 
community-based organisations. As we look to 
support regions and communities to level-up and 
build back better, we recognise the importance  
of purposeful partnerships and look forward to 
continuing to collaborate with like-minded partners 
to drive social mobility and positive change.

Our markets
2021 has seen the Covid-19 pandemic have an ongoing impact on our markets, 
with growth in some sectors balanced by continued contraction, particularly 
during the winter lockdown months, in others. As we continue to emerge 
from	the	pandemic,	the	future	is	difficult	to	predict	but	we	believe	Seetec		 	
is well placed to support the UK and Irish governments in their economic 
recovery	efforts. 
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Employability and Health 
Our services in the Employability and Health sector 
grew significantly in 2021. We are a key partner to 
the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) in 
delivering the government’s Plan for Jobs in 
response to the pandemic, particularly in South 
West England, through the Work and Health 
Programme, WHP-Job Entry Targeted Support and 
Restart Scheme. As the impact on the end of the 
Job Retention Scheme is better understood, we will 
continue to respond to the needs of the communities 
we support across the South West, East of England, 
London, North West and West Midlands. 

We continue to support some of the most vulnerable 
in society through Pluss, our Community Interest 
Company. Primarily funded by local authorities 
and the National Lottery Community Fund, Pluss 
supports individuals furthest from the labour 
market including those with mental health 
conditions, learning difficulties and disabilities to 
move towards employment. Our industries provide 
meaningful opportunities for supported employment 
in the South West and we welcome the government’s 
commitment to extending vital disability services 
as set out in the recent National Disability Strategy 
and through the consultation for the Health and 
Disability Green paper.

Looking ahead, Seetec will continue to grow deep 
roots into the communities that we currently 
operate in to support their economic recovery. 
However, we expect that, as the economy recovers, 
the disability employment gap is likely to widen. 

As a Disability Confident Leader, we will work  
to close that employment gap by working with 
government and employers to improve employment 
options for those furthest from the labour market, 
tackling health inequalities and improving 
employment support for those with physical  
and mental health conditions. 

Justice and Social Care 
2021 saw significant changes in the outsourced 
justice market and commissioning landscape with 
the renationalisation of probation services. Our 
successful delivery of the Community Rehabilitation 
Company contracts across the South East, South 
West and Wales came to an end in June 2021 and 
we worked closely with the Ministry of Justice (MoJ) 
to smoothly transfer over a thousand staff. Part of 
the government’s transformation of probation 
services included the introduction of Community 
Rehabilitation Services, procured at a regional or 
local level to provide interventions to support 
rehabilitation. Seetec now deliver a number of 
these services, working closely with National 
Probation Service colleagues, in the South West, 
North West, South East and East of England. 

In addition to the Community Rehabilitation 
Services, we have established six CFO Activity 
Hubs in the North West, South West and South 
East, which deliver rehabilitative interventions and 
create a sense of community. We also opened an 
Approved Premises in Bristol for high-risk women 
released from custody. Our expertise in managing 
high risk offenders and delivering specialist 

rehabilitative interventions, such as our Domestic 
Abuse Preparator and Stalking Programme, has 
seen our work to reduce crime in local communities 
successfully grow and evolve across Kent, Surrey 
and Sussex. We welcome the additional investment 
being made by government in this important area 
and recognise the importance of balancing 
rehabilitation and prevention activity across the 
justice and social care markets. 

Looking ahead, we will continue to work closely 
with the MoJ, Home Office and Police to deliver 
rehabilitative services but also look to build on  
the success of our accommodation-based support 
services and behavioural change interventions  
in the communities that we serve. 

Our markets
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Apprenticeships, Education   
and Skills
Over recent years the skills funding landscape has 
changed significantly, from the introduction of the 
apprenticeship levy to devolution of the adult 
education budget to mayoral combined authorities. 
Additionally, the apprenticeships, education and 
skills market was significantly impacted by the 
Covid-19 pandemic, with many learners furloughed 
or put on a break in learning. Seetec Outsource 
has taken the opportunity to revise and refocus 
our skills strategy, placing particular focus on  
a number of key apprenticeship sectors including 
engineering and advanced manufacturing, public 
services, aviation, transport and logistics and media 
and communications – expanding our education 
and skills delivery out of our base in the North 
West, to complement our employability delivery  
in the South West. 

The National Skills Fund, part of the Plan for Jobs, 
is set to play a key role in the country’s economic 
recovery, and Seetec will support this effort through 
our skills delivery and strong employer relationships. 
We welcome the continued focus on skills and 
apprenticeships announced in the recent budget, 
particularly the emphasis on ensuring that 
apprenticeships meet the needs of employers. 
Our focus for 2022 is on continuing to work with 
employers to meet their skills needs, including  
the relaunch of our engineering and advanced 
manufacturing partnership, Innovion. 

Ireland 
Seetec’s delivery in Ireland is focused on the JobPath 
labour market activation programme that we deliver 
for the Department for Social Protection, alongside 
our five supply chain partners. The Irish outsourced 
employability market is younger than the UK market, 
and JobPath is the first generation of labour market 
activation programmes in Ireland. Our focus over 
the next 12 month is to maintain our Irish footprint 
through securing second generation contracts, 
likely to be procured imminently, and to successfully 
deliver our recently secured Regional Employment 
Services contract to solidify our position as a trusted 
partner of the Department of Social Protection. 

We continue to explore diversification opportunities 
in Ireland, in line with our commitment to developing 
a depth of presence in the communities we serve. 
We hope to expand our reach, utilising our strengths 
from the UK market into the Republic of Ireland  
in the future. 

Looking ahead
Aside from the impact of the pandemic, looking 
further ahead, the markets we operate in are going 
to be challenged to demonstrate value over and 
above contractual targets. Social value is embedded 
in everything that Seetec’s does, but over the next 
year we will have an increased focus on our impact 
on communities, our people and the environment, 
with an aim to be carbon neutral by 2030. 

We are also continuing to assess the impact of Brexit 
on our communities and markets, and welcome 
more information about the plans for the future 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund. Seetec will continue 
to put the individuals we serve at the heart of our 
delivery, as we diversify and deepen our presence 
in our communities to create local opportunities 
and support continued economic recovery. 

Our markets
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Group strategic report: year ended 31 March 2021
Review of business
The Seetec Group is a majority employee-owned 
provider of public and business services across the 
skills, employment and health and justice markets 
in the UK and Ireland. The company is the largest 
employee-owned public service provider in the UK. 
The employee-owned structure aligns the interests 
of the company’s employees with the success of 
the people and places the company supports.

 Employability provision supporting the long 
term unemployed including: Work and Health 
Programme prime contractor and subcontractor; 
its variation, JETS, as a prime and subcontractor, 
Routeways to Work as a subcontractor; the Big 
Lottery Fund; and our bed manufacturing operation 
providing skilled jobs and training for disabled 
people in Barnstaple and Plymouth, along with 
a number of local authority contracts funded by 
the European Social Fund (ESF) in the South West.

 Skills: Apprenticeships funded by employers 
through their Apprenticeship Levy and through 
non-Levy allocations and classroom-based training 
using the Adult Education Budget. These services 
are delivered through our own brand, Seetec Skills 
and our subsidiary, Seetec Outsource Training 
and Skills Limited, an amalgamation of Seetec’s 
Skills division and the Outsource Group of 
companies, which specialises in the aviation, 
logistics and media sectors working with a 
number of key accounts including British Airways, 

the Department for Work and Pensions, Sky, 
Civil Service apprenticeship framework, 
Diligentia and Reach.

 Justice: delivering Transforming Rehabilitation 
and probation services through the ownership 
of the Kent, Surrey and Sussex Community 
Rehabilitation Company Limited (KSS CRC Ltd). 
In February 2019, KSS CRC took over a further 
three probation services areas, Bristol, 
Gloucestershire, Somerset and Wiltshire (BGSW), 
Dorset, Devon and Cornwall (DDC) and Wales 
when the previous provider, Working Links, 
went into administration. The Ministry of Justice 
transferred staff and services to KSS CRC under 
a variation to KSS CRC’s existing contract. In 
December 2019, Seetec transferred Offender 
Management services back to the National 
Probation Service in Wales and continues to 
deliver accredited programmes, community 
payback and other interventions to its Welsh 
caseload. KSS CRC supervises and supports 
around 20,000 people subject to probation 
supervision in the areas in which it operates. 
This service was returned to public ownership 
in June 2021.

 Ireland: the organisation continued to deliver 
JobPath for the Department of Employment 
Affairs and Social Protection (DEASP) through  
its subsidiary, Seetec Employment and Skills 
Ireland Designated Activity Company.

 Corporate Services: Our corporate services 
division continued to support the various 
operating businesses with a range of high-
quality corporate support including finance, 
payroll, HR, communications and marketing, 
business development, IT infrastructure, estates, 
software development, business intelligence, 
claims, commercial, risk and assurance. 

The year ended 31 March 2021 was dominated  
by the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic, both 
positively and negatively. Different sectors within 
the group were impacted differently with skills 
and manufacturing hit hardest. Our Probation staff 
are Key Workers and continued to deliver under 
their contract albeit using an agreed adjusted delivery 
model, particularly for client interventions. Our 
Employability and Jobpath businesses were both 
supported in their own way by their commissioners, 
with the common intent of making sure that all 
infrastructure focused on getting people back into 
work at the first opportunity was maintained. In the 
UK, the Department for Work and Pensions changed 
their payment regime to one of cost +, whilst in 
Ireland, we were able to make use of the various 
wage subsidy schemes to ensure that staff were 
maintained in post ready to respond once referrals 
were re-instigated. In both jurisdictions we took 
advantage of the VAT payment deferral scheme.
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In the course of the year the Group delivered from 
over 148 office locations, supported by delivery on 
employers’ and community-based premises and 
employed 2,200 members of staff in the UK and 
Ireland. During the lockdown and to date many of 
our staff have worked extremely effectively from 
their homes.

In December 2019 the company became one of the 
largest majority employee-owned business in the UK. 
An Employee Ownership Trust bought a controlling 
interest of 51% of the shares from the company’s 
founder for the sole benefit of the employees. 
This is a significant change to the way the business 
used to be structured. The new structures give 
Seetec employees influence as owners and a stake 
in the success created when the business delivers 
social value.

An elected employee council of 10 representatives 
has been established with probation workers, 
employment coaches and trainers from front line 
operations across the UK and Ireland. One of them 
now serves on the board of the Employee Ownership 
Trust and attends the Group Executive Board. The 
remainder of the council sit on the boards that 
oversee Seetec’s business units. This level of 
employee ownership and engagement is 
unprecedented in the sectors in which Seetec 
works. It ensures the interests of employees are 
closely aligned with the success of the people we 
support, setting the organisation apart from its 

competitors and offering greater choice to 
customers and commissioners.

Strategic Priorities and External 
Environment

Business plan
The Group’s 5-year business plan, which is 
updated annually, articulates the vision and 
strategic priorities for the Group.

The Group’s vision is: To be the UK and Ireland’s 
leading public and business services provider, 
built on a reputation of trust, quality and delivering 
real social and economic value. This is supported 
by an ambition to:

 Have a reputation as the best in class;

 Grow and diversify; and

 Deliver world class services that make   
a difference.

This ambition is delivered through a set of 
strategic objectives that sit across all business 
units and form the basis of our service design 
principles:

 Delivering value for money for commissioners 
and social value for individuals and 
communities through our contract portfolio;

 An engaged and productive workforce, 
underpinned by our employee-ownership 
structure where employees take a collective 
responsibility to drive outcomes, manage risk, 
own a culture of continual improvement and 
contribute to the growth of the group;

 Working collaboratively and consultatively  
with businesses and other stakeholders to find 
innovative ways to use funding to increase 
positive outcomes;

 Putting the service user at the heart of the 
delivery model, driving service user satisfaction 
and building service user input into delivery; 
and

 Exceeding benchmarks for quality standards 
through delivery of a world class service.
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Public and business services policy reform continue 
to provide new market opportunities for the Group 
which form the basis for our growth plans, these 
include but are not limited to:

Employability and Health: with the increase in the 
integration of health, education and employment 
outcomes in public procurement, the focus on social 
value and the devolution of purchasing to Local 
Enterprise Partnerships and devolved authorities, 
through the merger with Pluss CIC in April 2019 
and the subsequent formation of Seetec Pluss, the 
Group has the capacity, capability and expertise to 
secure and successfully deliver payment by results 
and grant funded projects. The Coronavirus 
(Covid-19) pandemic has also created an acute need 
for the Group’s employability services as we have 
demonstrated a strong track record of helping 
people into sustained work, which creates the 
foundation for future careers. We expect there to 
be considerable demand for services to help the 
unemployed back to work as a result of the impact 
of Coronavirus on the UK economy, as confirmed 
in the Chancellor’s statement of the 8 July 2020. 
Seetec has secured a prime contract under the 
Restart initiative in the South West of England. The 
impact of the pandemic is the biggest strategic 
challenge the UK has faced since the Great 
Depression and employment, health and skills is a 
clear, overarching policy for the UK government and 
devolved administrations. Seetec has ensured that 

infrastructure (both people and premises) is 
maintained in the group to allow us to respond 
immediately to this challenge.

Skills: the introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy in 
the UK and the continued policy focus on vocational 
education as an alternative to traditional Higher 
Education routes. Our skills business has integrated, 
consolidated and refocused delivery on high value, 
market demand led qualifications including leadership 
and management, digital and media, aviation, public 
service, justice, logistics and Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Mathematics (STEM). The UK 
Government’s Plan for Jobs, announced in response 
to the impact of the Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic 
also places a renewed emphasis on skills and 
training, particularly for young people. The Group 
is well placed to support businesses to build capacity 
and capability for skills and apprenticeship 
programmes.

Justice: FY19 saw a significant increase in our 
probation services market share with the addition 
of three new probation service delivery areas. 
During FY20, we assisted HM Prisons and Probation 
Services to return Offender Management to the 
National Probation Service in Wales. Whilst next 
generation contracts will look significantly different 
as the service is largely renationalised, the Group 
has a strong reputation and has been successful 
in securing opportunities through the Dynamic 
Framework and Resettlement hub competitions. 
The prison reform agenda with a particular focus 
on education, training, employment, and 

rehabilitation outcomes provides further 
opportunities for the Group through partnership 
models. We will also pursue opportunities in the 
provision of Approved Premises for people 
returning to the community from custody.

Ireland: increasing live registers coupled with an 
uncertain economic outlook, with a commitment to 
reforming apprenticeships provides the business 
with the opportunity to diversify and transfer the 
investment in our skills infrastructure into new 
geographical markets. An extension to the current 
JobPath contract, in light of the impact of Coronavirus 
(Covid-19) and its effects on unemployment levels 
has provided the opportunity to trial new service 
delivery initiatives in preparation for further 
procurement of labour market activation services in 
2021 and beyond. There are opportunities outlined 
in the coalition’s ‘Programme for Government’ 
across labour market activation, apprenticeships, 
reskilling and retraining, as does the Labour 
Market Advisory Council report.

We maintain healthy cash balances to respond  
to these opportunities as and when they arise.

The results for the year and financial position  
of the company and Group are as shown in the 
annexed financial statements.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
The Group is subject to the normal strategic, 
operational, financial and commercial risks that 
arise in the ordinary course of business. These 
risks and controls are reviewed by the Board of 
Directors through its Corporate Governance and 
risk management framework. A comprehensive 
Group Risk Framework is in place which enables 
the Board and the senior leadership team to set 
and manage risk appetite, identify, analyse, quantify 
and embrace risk, leading to enhanced performance 
and the ability to maximise opportunities and 
mitigate risk levels where appropriate.

The key business risks are:

 Management have given due regard to the 
continuing impacts on the business of the 
worldwide Coronavirus pandemic. The imposition 
of lockdown in March 2020 and intermittently 
since then, had different impact in different parts 
of the group. For employability, both in the UK and 
ROI, referrals to programmes ceased immediately. 
The Skills business was hit particularly hard as 
apprentices, particularly in the aviation sector, 
were furloughed or made redundant. Seetec’s 
Justice services were relatively unaffected and 
continued throughout the lockdown period, 
albeit under a revised delivery model. At the 
same time, all areas of the group moved to 

remote working to support our existing clients 
through the innovative use of digital and 
technological solutions. Although the group has 
taken advantage of the Wage Subsidy Scheme 
in Ireland, which applied to all employees, and the 
Job Retention Scheme in the UK, which impacted 
approximately 85 people (see note 5), and the 
deferral of VAT payments, both revenues and 
cash were adversely affected by this pandemic. 
Increasing numbers of people becoming 
unemployed will present opportunities for the 
group both in the UK and the ROI. The directors 
consider that the steps taken, along with the 
opportunities that are currently presenting 
provide sufficient mitigation against this risk;

 The Group’s reliance upon income from 
Government funded contracts in an external 
environment where recent high-profile competitor 
company and contract failure is likely to impact 
on the type of public and business services that 
are outsourced and the perception and reputation 
of organisations operating in the market;

 The impact of the changes to Levy and non-Levy 
funding in the skills market and bias from 
employers toward higher level qualifications, 
reducing overall funding available; 

 As a business operating in both the UK and 
Ireland, the terms of the Brexit agreement  
and the resulting impact on both confidence 
and trading mechanisms; and

 The Kent, Surrey and Sussex Community 
Rehabilitation Company Limited ran probation 
services on behalf of the Ministry of Justice for low 
and medium risk offenders in four probation 
services areas. These services have been 
transferred back to the National Probation 
Service at the end of current contracts.

The Board has a policy to maintain sufficient cash 
reserves to support payment by results contracts 
and the associated working capital requirements, 
diversification into new markets, to support time 
lags experienced from the impact of policy changes 
and to fund investments in transformation 
programmes.

Key performance indicators

The Group uses the following key performance 
indicators to monitor the performance of the 
business:

 2021  2020
 £’000  £’000

Turnover  129,445  139,226

Profit before taxation  142  5,406

EBITDA  3,400  7,703
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External benchmarking and accreditation remain 
critical to our ethos of transparency, maintaining 
high standards and delivering world class services. 
As a business with people at our heart, we are an 
Investors in People Gold and Investors in People 
Health and Wellbeing accredited organisation, 
achieving re-accreditation in November 2018. 
During 2019/20 we received the following 
accreditations: Ban the Box, Real Living Wage, 
Time to Change, Mindful Employer and Disability 
Confident Leader.

We use feedback from a range of stakeholders 
including employees, delivery partners, commissioner 
and service users gathered directly and through 
third party and external assessment processes to 
feed into the continual improvement cycle.

Employee engagement and wellbeing is a key social 
indicator for the business. Employee engagement 
surveys undertaken in 2020 indicated stability in 
Group employee engagement and wellbeing scores, 
whilst those for 2021 are indicating an improvement, 
a remarkable achievement considering the impacts 
of Covid-19, remote working and the impending 
return of over 1,000 staff to the public sector.  
The majority of our employees indicated they  
are committed to the organisation’s goals and  
feel inspired to do their best.

Delivering Social Value - As an employee-owned 
for-profit, for social purpose business operating  

in the public and business services markets,  
the organisation takes measures to embed and 
demonstrate ethical leadership and governance, 
and to deliver both social and economic value  
in the communities in which we operate. The 
organisation became a certified B Corporation® 
in 2016 underpinning the Board’s commitment  
to corporate social responsibility, transparency, 
scrutiny, and accountability in both the services 
delivered and the way the organisation is run. 

Certified B Corporations are leaders of a global 
movement of people using business as a force for 
good™. They meet the highest standards of overall 
social and environmental performance, transparency 
and accountability and aspire to use the power of 
business to solve social and environmental problems. 
In 2019, we went through re-accreditation, increasing 
our score against our original benchmark, 
demonstrating the increased emphasis the 
business is putting on delivering social value.

We have launched several initiatives to support our 
corporate social responsibility strategy and the 
emphasis we place on driving social value. In 
November 2018 we introduced our supported 
volunteering scheme, where all employees are 
entitled to up to one day’s paid leave to carry out 
volunteering duties, which was raised to two days 
per annum during 2020. Seetec’s Community 
Investment Fund is a voluntary group of employees, 
who coordinate the company’s charitable giving 
fund by supporting the individual fund-raising 
efforts of our employees across the group and 

our recently launched Community, Environment 
and Social Value Committee held its inaugural 
meeting to agree Terms of Reference and discuss 
pledges the business intends to make to further 
its social contribution to its people, communities 
and environment.

As a result of Group operating activities in the 
financial year to end of March 2021, in spite of the 
pandemic and lockdowns, we continued to deliver 
our services to individuals, resulting in both fiscal 
and social benefits to those individuals and the 
communities they operate in. Unfortunately, the 
delivery of unpaid work hours by KSS CRC was 
significantly impacted by lockdown restrictions 
compared to the 475,000 hours delivered the year 
before. In the Republic of Ireland, evidence has 
shown that those who obtain work, through our 
interventions, earn more as a result of their 
involvement in Jobpath, with other outputs 
including improved skills, a move closer to the 
labour market and greater willingness and 
confidence to consider self-employment.

We continually seek to reduce the impact of our 
operating activities on the environment through  
a range of initiatives to reduce waste and increase 
recycling. We consistently exceed our targets of 
80% waste recycling across our service delivery 
outlets.
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Section 172(1) statement

General confirmation of directors’ duties.

The company’s Board has a clear framework for 
determining the matters within its authority and 
has approved Terms of Reference for the matters 
delegated to its Committees and Supervisory Boards. 
Some strategic matters and financial authorities 
have been determined to require Board scrutiny 
and approval. The Directors meet regularly to review 
business objectives and evaluate the allocation of 
resources to achieve its strategic growth ambitions. 
This is to ensure likely consequences of any decisions 
are known and discussed in advance, the interests 
of Seetec’s employee owners are reviewed and 
the highest level of transparency is maintained 
across the business.

S172(1) (A) The likely consequences  
of any decision in the long-term

The Directors understand fully the importance 
and long-term impact of their decisions on those 
individuals who access services in the communities 
that Seetec serves. All long-term decision making 
is channelled through existing strategies and 
processes that follow a prescribed route to assess 
the impact of new and potential business 
workstreams. The business has appropriate 
management controls that are regularly reviewed 
to maintain the integrity of Directors’ long-term 
decision making.

S172(1) (B) The interests    
of the company’s employees

The Directors recognise that Seetec’s employee 
owners are a fundamental part of the business, by 
empowering them to shape the direction of the 
services delivered and strategic objectives pursued, 
this enhanced collaborative approach helps to 
cultivate a more engaged workforce. The company 
is now indirectly employee-owned following the 
purchase by the Seetec Employee Ownership 
Trust of a controlling interest in the group.

Success in the future and converting the benefits 
of employee ownership into reality will depend on 
attracting, retaining and empowering employees 
to deliver those benefits for themselves. Seetec is 
a Living Wage Employer, publishes a gender pay 
gap report to monitor the parity of incomes, 
conducts annual employee engagement surveys, 
promotes mental health awareness, and includes 
employee owners on all Supervisory and Executive 
Boards. There is a determination at Director level 
that employee owners are involved in decision 
making, including areas that directly impact the 
wider workforce.

During the financial year, there have been further 
initiatives to build on the move to Seetec’s new 
structure by working closely with new employee 
champions, forming an employee council, and 
electing the first Employee Trustee Director to sit 
on the Ownership Trust. The Directors believe it is 
important to further embed a culture of collaboration 

across the business so that employee owners get 
a say in Seetec’s future growth ambitions.

The Directors are working to put employees at the 
heart of building a sustainable business, encouraging 
greater productivity and more robust governance 
to establish an organisation that meets the shift in 
priorities across modern society to give workers a 
greater say. The collective talent and determination 
of Seetec’s employee owners is establishing a lasting 
legacy not just for the business, but for all those in 
the communities it serves.

S172(1) (C) The need to foster the 
company’s business relationships 
with suppliers, customers, and others

In order to deliver the overall business strategy, the 
Group needs strong mutually beneficial agreements 
with all its partners, including commissioners, 
customers and suppliers. Seetec has developed  
a supply chain framework that recognises the part 
played by partners in the achievement of its strategic 
objectives. The Directors recognise and take 
responsibility for ensuring that processes and 
procedures, especially financial arrangements, are 
tailored to support and foster long lasting productive 
relationships. Building the resilience of local supply 
chains is important, Seetec helps small and 
medium-sized enterprises through its social 
enterprises and supports people to set up their 
own businesses.
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S172(1) (D) The impact of the 
company’s operations on the 
community and the environment

Last year the Group approved the establishment 
of a new governance Committee, the Community, 
Environment and Social Value Committee, chaired 
by a Non-Executive Director and attended by the 
Chief Executive which has now begun to report on 
the effects of our work in this respect. The Committee 
meets quarterly and is currently finalising a number 
of pledges which the Group will undertake to 
deliver in the course of the next year and which will 
be further developed over the longer term. Its reports 
will provide Directors with regular updates on the 
Group’s impact and contribution. Furthermore, the 
Group has held B Corp ® accreditation for a number 
of years, which is externally assessed and recognised.

The Group has a well-established set of social values 
that form the backbone of key decisions made by 
the business. Seetec continually assesses how it can 
reduce the environmental impact of its services. 
Directors encourage employee owners to support 
community groups and other organisations to 
maintain and improve local environments. Through 
the Group’s employment, probation and skills 
services, it works with a range of vulnerable and 
disadvantaged people. Seetec supports community 
projects to improve rural and urban environments, 
is a Disability Confident supporter and works closely 
with people to achieve their work and life ambitions. 
Seetec’s volunteering scheme promotes the 
importance of grassroots engagement.

S172(1) (E) The desirability of the 
company maintaining a reputation for 
high standards of business conduct

The Directors regularly review all risks faced by 
the business. This includes the risk of the loss of 
reputation and the steps taken to mitigate it. The 
Group subscribes to the Seven Principles of Public 
Life, which are built into all governance frameworks. 
Following a review of business functions, the 
Directors have established policy communications 
and public affairs directorate to help manage the 
Group’s external reputation.

Through the Employee Ownership Association, 
the Institute of Employability Professionals, and the 
Confederation of British Industry, Seetec works 
with its colleagues outside the business to further 
the interests of the sectors it operates in to develop 
partnerships and gain insights about future 
business opportunities.

Seetec’s employee-ownership structure is enhancing 
its high standards of business conduct. The business 
is delivering true social value, particularly in the 
disadvantaged communities it serves. It will be using 
the collective knowledge and talent of its employee 
owners in smart and innovative ways to help 
transform more lives as part of the social 
inclusion agenda.

172(1) (F) The need to act fairly as 
between members of the company

Seetec’s Directors fully recognise that the long-term 
success of the group depends on the successful 
engagement of a number of stakeholders including 
its members. Since the establishment of the 
Employee Share Ownership Trust and Seetec’s 
move to employee-owned status, all groups of 
shareholders have been fully sighted on decision 
making in the Group. Our corporate governance 
structure and its attendant committee and executive 
meetings include in their membership employee 
representatives and non-executive directors who 
inform and challenge the Board and whose views 
are contributory to strategic decision making, 
taking into consideration the impact on members. 
We believe that in this way the Directors act fairly 
as between the company’s members.

This report was approved by the board on 22 
December 2021 and signed on its behalf.

John Baumback, 
Director
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The directors present their report and 
the	financial	statements	for	the	year	
ended 31 March 2021.

Results and dividends

The loss for the year, after taxation, amounted to 
£177k (2020: profit £4.7m).

During the year no dividends were declared or 
paid (2020: £41.5m).

Directors

The directors who served during the year were:

Peter Cooper (Non-Executive Chairman with 
effect from 1 April 2021)

John Baumback

Lesley Barry

Alexander Butt (non-executive director) (resigned 
31 August 2021)

David John Reynolds (non-executive director)

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the 
Group Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and 
the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare 
financial statements for each financial year. Under 
that law the directors have elected to prepare the 
financial statements in accordance with United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and 
applicable law, including FRS 102 ‘The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland’). Under company law the 
directors must not approve the financial statements 
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of 
the Group for that period. In preparing these 
financial statements, the directors are required to:

 Select suitable accounting policies and then 
apply them consistently;

 Make judgements and accounting estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent;

 State whether applicable UK Accounting 
Standards have been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained  
in the financial statements; and

 Prepare the financial statements on the  
going concern basis unless it is inappropriate  
to presume that the Group will continue in 
business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are sufficient to show and 
explain the company’s transactions and disclose 

with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 
position of the company and the Group and enable 
them to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the company and the Group and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection 
of fraud and other irregularities.
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Corporate Governance

The Group’s Board of Directors has five members 
including two non-executive directors (NEDs) and 
meets approximately four times a year. The business 
of the group is dealt with by the Group Executive 
Board (GEB) which consists of the members of the 
main Board along with the Group HR Director, 
Infrastructure and Corporate Services Director, 
Commercial and Corporate Governance Director 
and the Executive Directors of each business units. 
The GEB meets monthly. Supervisory or Strategy 
and Performance Boards for each business unit 
report directly into the GEB as does Corporate 
Services board. Scrutiny of the Executive is provided 
through two committees, the Audit, Risk and 
Assurance Committee and the Finance, Pay and 
Remuneration Committee. Each Committee 
meeting is held quarterly and is chaired by  
a Non-Executive Director.

Governance structures within the Seetec Group are 
based on the UK Corporate Governance Code and 
the Wates Corporate Governance principles and 
are designed to deliver public and business 
services in a commercial environment with the 
principles of transparency, clarity and honest 
accountability at the core. The accountability 
framework is built on clear communication and 
understanding of roles and responsibilities, robust 
performance, financial, risk and information 
management systems which integrates into the 

parent company board structures. Additional 
intra-organisation communication is enhanced by 
instituting protocols for operational agreements.

Post balance sheet events

On 11th June 2020 the Secretary of State for Justice 
announced that the competition for the next 
generation of probation contracts had been cancelled 
and that all services returned to the public sector 
when the current contracts came to an end in June 
2021. As the current parent company in four 
probation services areas with an excellent track 
record of interventions delivery we were successful 
in the Dynamic Framework competition, along with 
securing a number of activity hub contracts. Seetec 
is well positioned to secure future contracts which 
will be let in the sector.

Other information

On 1st April 2019 Pluss Community Interest 
Company an award-winning social enterprise and 
leading UK disability employment specialist joined 
the Seetec Group. Pluss supports thousands of 
people each year to achieve a career and fulfil 
their true potential.

Research and development activities

The company invests in research and development 
appropriate to its operating activities.

Seetec Group In Review | 2021 37



Directors’ report 2021: year ended 31 March 2021
Continued: 

Financial risk management

Price risk

The Seetec Group has a number of contracts, mostly 
with Government Departments. These contracts 
tend to be for a fixed period of time and a fixed 
price or price + indexation. This mitigates the risk 
associated with price. Further for the year FY21,  
a significant amount of Seetec’s revenue was 
generated from delivering contracts on a cost  
plus basis so eradicating all price risk on those 
particular contracts.

Currency risk

The group trades in the UK and Republic of Ireland. 
It manages currency risk and foreign exchange 
volatility through regular monitoring of exchange 
rates.

Liquidity risk

The group generates sufficient cash from its trading 
activities to support operations in its subsidiaries. 
During FY19 it borrowed £10m to finance the 
acquisition of a controlling interest in the Ordinary 
share capital of the business through Seetec 
Employee Ownership Trust Limited. Since that time 
it has made both capital and loan repayments as 
they fell due in addition to funding all its working 
capital requirements. Cash is monitored on daily 

basis and reported weekly into the group position, 
which is reported to the Board monthly. Annual 
budgeting and interim forecasting allow for a 
forward looking cash view to plan appropriately.

Interest rate risk

The company finances its operations through its own 
cash generation. Any interest charged between 
group companies is charged in line with the group’s 
Transfer Pricing Policy.

Credit risk

The group deals mainly with government 
departments. The Directors do not consider there 
to be any risk associated with credit in this business.

Cash flow risk

Cash in the business is recorded and reported up to 
group level on a daily basis. Cash moves backwards 
and forwards between group companies on an as 
required basis to fund all working capital 
requirements. Currently a number of contracts are 
delivered on a cost plus basis, others on a fixed 
price with a variety of payment mechanisms but the 
introduction of a payment by results regime for new 
contract wins of the magnitude of the Restart 
Scheme will increase pressure on working capital. 
The Directors consider that its working capital 
requirements will be supported by a diverse 
contract portfolio, bank borrowing and existing 
overdraft facilities, pending the development of 

the outcomes pipeline which will generate positive 
cash flows later in the contract.

Environmental matters

The Group will seek to minimise adverse impacts 
on the environment from its activities, whilst 
continuing to address health, safety and economic 
issues. The Group has complied with all applicable 
legislation and regulations.

In accordance with the government’s Streamlined 
Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) policy, which 
came into force from 1st April 2019, the directors 
are committed to conducting business in an 
environmentally responsible manner, preventing 
pollution and to continual improvement in the 
running of its Environmental Management System. 
The Seetec group holds the ISO14001 EMS 
certification and complies with all applicable legal, 
contractual and other requirements relative to its 
operations.
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We have set, reviewed and 
maintained appropriate 
environmental objectives (noted 
below) and management targets  
and continue to set appropriate 
performance targets

 Ensuring sustainability of resources

 Reducing our environmental impact

 Maximising our recycling opportunities

 Promoting ecological awareness

The Group Risk and Assurance Team provide 
subject matter expertise and assurance support 
for the Environmental Management System. This 
includes responsibility to ensure the Environmental 
Management System is implemented and 
maintained, and that performance, together  
with any recommendations for improvement,  
are reported to Senior Management.

The Environmental Aspects Register is used to 
identify and record the environmental aspects of 
the company’s activities and products and define 
the significant environmental impacts of such aspects 
which the company controls directly and those 
over which it has influence. It also considers new 
developments, abnormal conditions, future 
activities, and emergency situations.

The directors have commissioned research on the 
installation of solar panels for electricity tariff charge 
back. The company set an objective to reduce 
vehicle use for business purposes with an increase 
in the use of the Skype Business video conferencing 
tool. This has reduced vehicle use in the UK and 
Ireland. Opportunities ahead include the promotion 
of online platforms for meetings, incentives for 
greener vehicles, incentives for car sharing, and 
replacement of company vans with hybrid 
alternatives.

Figures for consumption of energy 
and mileage incurred in the business 
are set out below

Energy consumption

Buildings and operations  8,497,214 kWh

Travel and vehicles  887,543 kWh

GHG emissions

Emissions from combustion 
of gas (Scope 1)  4,742,631 kWh

Emissions from business 
travel (Scope 1)  887,543 kWh

Emissions from 
purchased electricity 
(Scope 2 location-based)  3,754,583 kWh

Total GHG emissions  2,026 tonnes CO2e

Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated in 
alignment with records used for the production  
of the consolidated Financial Statements for the 
relevant accounting period. We have used emission 
factors from UK Government GHG Conversion 
Factors for Company Reporting to calculate our 
Scope 1 and 2 emissions. All emissions required 
under the Companies Act 2006 are included except 
where stated and include Scope 1 (direct emissions 
from gas consumption) and Scope 2 (indirect 
emissions from purchased electricity) emissions 
but exclude Scope 3 (other emissions from 
business travel and waste) emissions.
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Directors’ report 2021: year ended 31 March 2021
Continued: 

Going concern

The group has recently secured updated borrowing 
facilities from its bankers. The group’s forecasts 
and projections for the period to 31 March 2023, 
taking account of debt repayments and reasonably 
possible changes in trading performance, show 
that the group will be able to operate within the 
level of these facilities and the covenants related 
there to. After applying sensitivity analysis to cash 
flow forecasts, the Directors have a reasonable 
expectation that the group has adequate resources 
to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future.

In spite of the fact that the Group lost over half of 
its existing turnover when the MOJ contract returned 
to public sector delivery in June 2021, the contract 
opportunities both already secured and yet to be 
secured de-risks Group’s forecasts significantly, 
although the payment and profit profile of 
significant Payment By Results contract wins will 
impact both cash and profit in FY22 and FY23. 
Profits on these contracts will flow from the end 
of FY23 onwards and fully support management’s 
approach to preparing the financial statements on 
a going concern basis.

Employee involvement

As mentioned above, in December 2019 the 
business became one of the largest employee-
owned business in the UK. An Employee 

Ownership Trust bought a controlling interest of 
51% of the shares from the company’s founder for 
the sole benefit of the employees. As co-owners’ 
employees now also input into the future strategy 
and direction of the business. The first Employee 
Council elections have taken place, with the 
inaugural meeting of the Council taking place on 
6th July 2020 and regular meetings occurring in 
accordance with the governance timetable since 
then. One member of the council has been elected 
as Employee Trustee Director and is a member of 
the Group Executive Board. Other council members 
attend the executive board meetings for their 
respective trading business.

Our employees are the heart of our service. 
Involving our employees and keeping them informed 
and engaged has been a Group priority, especially 
during periods of remote working. We have ensured 
senior and middle managers have been visible 
throughout the year and supported staff through 
an enhanced Employee Assistance Programme 
and a range of internally delivered staff well-being 
initiatives. 

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

There are no third-party or pension scheme 
indemnity provisions in place for any of the 
directors.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The directors confirm that:

 So far as each director is aware, there is no 
relevant audit information of which the company 
and the Group’s auditor is unaware; and

 The directors have taken all the steps that they 
ought to have taken as directors in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the company 
and the Group’s auditor is aware of that 
information.

Auditor

The auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, will be proposed 
for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of 
the Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board on 22 
December 2021 and signed on its behalf.

John Baumback, 
Director
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Independent auditor’s report
Independent auditor’s report to 
the members of Seetec Business 
Technology Centre Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 
Seetec Business Technology Centre Limited (the 
‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) 
for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, the consolidated and company balance 
sheets, the consolidated statement of cash flows, 
the consolidated and company statement of 
changes in equity and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 
102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

 Give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs  
as at 31 March 2021 and of the Group’s loss  
for the year then ended;

 Have been properly prepared in accordance 
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and

 Have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) 
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements’ section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group and the parent company 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the 
appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s and of the parent 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 

our report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group and the parent company to 
cease to continue as  a going concern.

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we 
considered the inherent risks associated with the 
Group’s and of the parent company’s business model 
including effects arising from macro-economic 
uncertainties such as Brexit and Covid-19, we 
assessed and challenged the reasonableness of 
estimates made by the directors and the related 
disclosures and analysed how those risks might 
affect the Group’s and of the parent company’s 
financial resources or ability to continue operations 
over the going concern period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have 
not identified any material uncertainties relating 
to events or conditions that, individually or 
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the 
Group’s and of the parent company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a period of at 
least twelve months from when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have 
concluded that the directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation  
of the financial statements is appropriate.
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Independent auditor’s report
Continued: 
The responsibilities of the directors with   
respect to going concern are described in the 
‘Responsibilities of directors for the financial 
statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises  
the information included in the Annual Report, 
other than the financial statements and our 
Auditor’s Report thereon. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise 
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, 
we are required to determine whether there is a 
material misstatement in the financial statements 
or a material misstatement of the other information. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement  
of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed 
by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken  
in the course of the audit:

 The information given in the Group Strategic 
Report and the Directors’ Report for the 
financial year for which the financial statements 
are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements; and

 The Group Strategic Report and the Directors’ 
Report have been prepared in accordance with 
applicable legal requirements.

Matter on which we are required to 
report under the Companies Act 2006

In the light of the knowledge and understanding 
of the Group and the parent company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, 
we have not identified material misstatements in 
the Group Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

Matters on which we are required to 
report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following 
matters in relation to which the Companies Act 
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

 Adequate accounting records have not been kept 
by the parent company, or returns adequate for 
our audit have not been received from 
branches not visited by us; or

 The parent company financial statements are 
not in agreement with the accounting records 
and returns; or

 Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration 
specified by law are not made; or

 We have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit.
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Independent auditor’s report
Continued: 

Responsibilities of directors for   
the	financial	statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ 
Responsibilities Statement, the directors are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give  
a true and fair view, and for such internal control 
as the directors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due  
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors 
are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the 
parent company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to 
liquidate the Group or the parent company or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of	the	financial	statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions  
of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for  
the audit of the financial statements is located  
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:   
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our Auditor’s Report.

Explanation as to what extent the 
audit was considered capable of 
detecting irregularities, including 
fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances  
of non-compliance with laws and regulations.  
We design procedures in line with our 
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect  
material misstatements in respect of irregularities, 
including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations 
of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that 
material misstatements in the financial statements 
may not be detected, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance 
with the ISAs (UK).

The extent to which our procedures are capable  
of detecting irregularities, including fraud is 
detailed below:

 We enquired of management concerning the 
Group’s policies and procedures relating to:

 The identification, evaluation and 
compliance with laws and regulations;

 The detection and response to the risks  
of fraud; and

 The establishment of internal controls  
to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations

 The Group is subject to many laws and regulations 
where the consequences of non-compliance could 
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures 
in the financial statements. We identified the 
following laws and regulations as the most likely 
to have a material effect if non-compliance were 
to occur: United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (“UK GAAP”), the Companies 
Act 2006, United Kingdom Corporation Tax 
legislation, anti-bribery legislation, GDPR and 
employment law.
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Independent auditor’s report
Continued: 
 We assessed the susceptibility of the Group  
and company’s financial statements to material 
misstatement, including how fraud might occur, 
by evaluating management’s incentives and 
opportunities for manipulation of the financial 
statements. This included an evaluation of the 
risk of management override of controls. We 
determined that the principal risks were in 
relation to:

 Journal entries that increased revenues  
or that reclassified costs from the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income to the Balance 
Sheet; and

 Potential management bias in determining 
accounting estimates

 These audit procedures were designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements 
were free from fraud or error. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is 
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting 
from error and detecting irregularities that 
result from fraud is inherently more difficult than 
detecting those that result from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, 
forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, 
the further removed non-compliance with laws 
and regulations is from events and transactions 
reflected in the financial statements, the less 
likely we would become aware of it;

 The company’s management have not 
communicated to the audit team any matters  
of non-compliance with laws and regulations  
or fraud and no such matters were identified  
by the audit team;

 Assessment of the appropriateness of the 
collective competence and capabilities of the 
engagement team included consideration of  
the engagement team’s:

 Understanding of, and practical experience 
with audit engagements of a similar nature 
and complexity through appropriate training 
and participation;

 Knowledge of the industry in which the 
client operates; and

 Understanding of the legal and regulatory 
requirements specific to the entity including, 
the provisions of the applicable legislation, 
the regulator’s rules and related guidance, 
including guidance issued by relevant 
authorities that interprets those rules  
and the applicable statutory provisions.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s 
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state 
to the company’s members those matters we are 
required to state to them in an Auditor’s Report 
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the company 
and the company’s members as a body, for our 
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.

James Brown LLB ACA 
Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Chelmsford

22 December 2021
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income: year ended 31 March 2021

*The notes on pages 28 to 58 form part of these financial statements.

   2021  2020
  Note*  £000  £000

Turnover   4  129,445  139,226   

Cost of sales    (97,350)  (93,320)     

Gross profit    32,095  45,906

Administrative expenses    (35,011)  (40,462)

Other operating income   5  3,436  22    

Operating profit   6  520  5,466

Interest receivable and similar income   10  47  136

Interest payable and similar expenses   11  (425)  (196)    

Profit before taxation    142  5,406

Tax on profit   12  (319)  (756)    

(Loss)/profit for the financial year    (177)  4,650         

Currency translation differences    (244)  77    

Other comprehensive income for the year    (244)  77    

Total comprehensive income for the year    (421)  4,727         
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Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021
    2021   2020
  Note*   £000   £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets   13   2,526   4,134
Tangible assets   14   2,667   3,101       
    5,193   7,235
Current assets
Stocks   16  279   242
Debtors   17  22,462   19,095
Cash at bank and in hand   18  14,050   6,347     
   36,791   25,684

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year   19  (32,681)   (20,527)     

Net current assets     4,110   5,157      
Total assets less current liabilities     9,303   12,392
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year  20   (2,530)   (5,947)

Provisions for liabilities
Other provisions   25  (2,906)   (2,157)      
    (2,906)  (2,157)      
Net assets     3,867   4,288            
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital   26   666   666
Capital redemption reserve   27   10   10
Profit and loss account   27   3,191   3,612      
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company    3,867   4,288            

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on 22 December 2021.

 John Baumback, Director
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Company balance sheet as at 31 March 2021
    2021   2020
  Note*   £000   £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets   13   1,689   2,525
Tangible assets   14   385   363 
Investments   15   -   354       
    2,074   3,242
Current assets
Debtors   17  8,695   10,661
Cash at bank and in hand   18  860  167     
   9,555   10,828

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year   19  (8,068)   (7,416)     

Net current assets     1,487   3,412      
Total assets less current liabilities     3,561   6,654

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year  20   (2,500)   (5,846)

Provisions for liabilities
Other provisions   25  (187)   -      
    (187)  -      
Net assets     874   808            
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital   26   666   666
Capital redemption reserve   27   10   10
Profit and loss account      198   132       
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company       874   808            

The company has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive 
Income in these Financial Statements. The profit after tax of the parent company for the year was £66k (2020: £2,892k).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on 22 December 2021.

 John Baumback, Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity: year ended 31 March 2021

Consolidated statement of changes in equity: year ended 31 March 2020

  Called up share capital  Capital redemption reserve Profit and loss account Total equity
  £000  £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2020   666  10  3,612  4,288  

Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year   -  -  (177)  (177)     
Currency translation differences   -  -  (244)  (244)     
Other comprehensive income for the year   -  -  (244)  (244)     
Total comprehensive income for the year   -  -  (421)  (421)     
At 31 March 2021   666  10  3,191  3,867          

  Called up share capital  Capital redemption reserve Profit and loss account Total equity
  £000  £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2019 (as previously stated)  666  10  41,152  41,828  
Prior year adjustment  -  -  (767)  (767)  
At 1 April 2019 (as restated)   666  10  40,385  41,061     

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year   -  -  4,650  4,650     
Currency translation differences   -  -  77  77     

Other comprehensive income for the year   -  -  77  77     

Total comprehensive income for the year   -  -  4,727  4,727
Gift (see note 32)   -  -  (41,500)  (41,500)     
At 31 March 2020  666  10  3,612  4,288          
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Company statement of changes in equity: year ended 31 March 2021

Company statement of changes in equity: year ended 31 March 2020

  Called up share capital  Capital redemption reserve Profit and loss account Total equity
  £000  £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2020   666  10  132  808  

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year   -  -  66  66     

Total comprehensive income for the year   -  -  66 66     

At 31 March 2021   666  10  198  874          

  Called up share capital  Capital redemption reserve Profit and loss account Total equity
  £000  £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2019 (as previously stated)  666  10  39,507  40,183  
Prior year adjustment  -  -  (767)  (767)
     
At 1 April 2019 (as restated)   666  10  38,740 39,416     

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year   -  -  2,892  2,892     

Contributions by and distributions to owners  
Gift (see note 32)   -  -  (41,500)  (41,500)     
At 31 March 2020  666  10  132 808          
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Consolidated statement of cash flows: 
year ended 31 March 2021
  2021 2020
   £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the financial year   (177)  4,650
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets   1,760  826 
Depreciation of tangible assets   1,120  1,411
Loss on disposal of tangible assets   35  172
Interest paid   425  196
Interest received   (47)  (136)
Taxation charge   319  756
(Increase) in stocks   (37)  (53)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors   (2,855)  2,385
Increase/(decrease) in creditors   11,952  (1,023)
Increase in provisions   749  241
Corporation tax (paid)   (1,112)  (2,329)
Foreign exchange   (206)  38
   
Net cash generated from operating activities   11,926  7,134
   

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets   (819)  (246)
Sale of tangible fixed assets   60  -
Interest received   47  136
Capitalised development expenditure   (152)  (262)
Cash acquired with subsidiary undertaking   -  1,086
   
Net cash from investing activities  (864)  714
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Consolidated statement of cash flows: 
year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)
  2021 2020
   £000 £000
Cash flows from financing activities

New secured loans  -  10,000
Repayment of loans   (4,083)  (83)
Repayment of/new finance leases   (166)  (269)
Loans due from/(repaid to) directors   -  1
Distribution paid   -  (41,500)
Interest paid   (425)  (196)
   
Net cash used in financing activities   (4,674)  (32,047)
      

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  6,388  (24,199)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   5,824  30,023

   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year   12,212  5,824      

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year comprise:

Cash at bank and in hand   14,050  6,347
Bank overdrafts   (1,838)  (523)
   
  12,212  5,824
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Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
1. General information

Seetec Business Technology Centre Limited (the 
“company”) is a private company limited by shares 
and incorporated and domiciled in the UK. Its 
registered head office is located at 75-77 Main 
Road, Hockley, Essex, SS5 4RG.

2. Accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention unless otherwise 
specified within these accounting policies and in 
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102, 
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the 
UK and the Republic of Ireland and the Companies 
Act 2006.

All amounts in the financial statements have been 
rounded to the nearest £1,000.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption 
allowed under section 408 of the Companies Act 
2006 and has not presented its own Statement of 
Comprehensive Income in these financial statements.

The parent company is included in the consolidated 
financial statements and is considered to be a 
qualifying entity under FRS 102 paragraphs 1.8 to 
1.12. The following exemptions available under 
FRS 102 in respect of certain disclosures for the 
parent company financial statements have been 
applied:

 No separate parent company Cash Flow 
Statement with related notes is included; and

 Key Management Personnel compensation  
has not been included. 

The following principal accounting policies have 
been applied:

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include  
the financial statements of the company and its 
subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 March 2021. 
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the 
parent. The results of subsidiary undertakings are 
included in the Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income from the date that control 
commences until the date that control ceases. 
Control is established when the company has the 
power to govern the operating and financial policies 
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 
In assessing control, the Group takes into 
consideration potential voting rights that are 
currently exercisable.

In the parent financial statements, investments in 
subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment.

2.3 Going concern

The group has recently secured updated borrowing 
facilities from its bankers. The group’s forecasts 
and projections for the period to 31 March 2023, 
taking account of debt repayments and reasonably 
possible changes in trading performance, show that 
the group will be able to operate within the level of 
these facilities and the covenants related there to. 
After applying sensitivity analysis to cash flow 
forecasts, the Directors have a reasonable expectation 

that the group has adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

In spite of the fact that the Group lost over half of 
its existing turnover when the MOJ contract returned 
to public sector delivery in June 2021, the contract 
opportunities both already secured and yet to be 
secured de-risks Group’s forecasts significantly, 
although the payment and profit profile of significant 
Payment By Results contract wins will impact both 
cash and profit in FY22 and FY23. Profits on these 
contracts will flow from the end of FY23 onwards and 
fully support management’s approach to preparing 
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The company’s functional and presentational 
currency is GBP.

Transactions and balances

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations 
are translated into Sterling at rates approximating 
to those ruling when the transactions took place. 
All assets and liabilities of overseas operations are 
translated at the rate ruling at the reporting date. 
Exchange differences arising on translating the 
opening net assets at opening rate and the results 
of overseas operations at actual rate are recognised 
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Classification of financial instruments 
issued by the Group

In accordance with FRS 102.22, financial instruments 
issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the 
extent that they meet the following two conditions:

1. They include no contractual obligations upon the 
Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or 
to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities 
with another party under conditions that are 
potentially unfavourable to the Group; and

2. Where the instrument will or may be settled in 
the entity’s own equity instruments, it is either  
a non-derivative that includes no obligation to 
deliver a variable number of the entity’s own equity 
instruments or is a derivative that will be settled 
by the entity exchanging a fixed amount of cash 
or other financial assets for a fixed number of 
its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the 
proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. 
Where the instrument so classified takes the legal 
form of the entity’s own shares, the amounts 
presented in these financial statements for called up 
share capital and share premium account exclude 
amounts in relation to those shares. 

2.6 Basic financial instruments

Trade and other debtors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at 
transaction price less attributable transaction costs. 

Trade and other creditors are recognised initially 
at transaction price plus attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition they are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment losses in the 
case of trade debtors. If the arrangement 
constitutes a financing transaction, for example if 
payment is deferred beyond normal business terms, 
then it is measured at the present value of future 
payments discounted at a market rate of instrument 
for a similar debt instrument.

Investments in preference and ordinary shares

Investments in equity instruments are measured 
initially at fair value, which is normally the transaction 
price. Transaction costs are excluded if the 
investments are subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit and loss. Subsequent to initial 
recognition investments that can be measured 
reliably are measured at fair value with changes 
recognition in profit or loss. Other investments are 
measured at cost less impairment in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances 
and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable 
on demand and form an integral part of the 
company’s cash management are included as a 
component of cash and cash equivalents for the 
purpose only of the cash flow statement. 

2.7 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Where parts of an item of tangible fixed assets 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items of tangible fixed assets, for 
example land is treated separately from buildings.

The company assesses at each reporting date 
whether tangible fixed assets (including those 
leased under a finance lease) are impaired.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss 
account on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of each part of an item of tangible 
fixed assets. Leased assets are depreciated over 
the shorter of the lease term and their useful 
lives. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold  - over the duration 
improvement   of the lease

Plant and machinery  - over 3 to 4 years

Motor vehicles  - over 4 years

Fixtures and fittings  - over 6 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed if there is an indication of a 
significant change since last annual reporting date 
in the pattern by which the company expects to 
consume an asset’s future economic benefits.
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Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using 
the purchase method as at the acquisition date, 
which is the date on which control is transferred 
to the entity.

At the acquisition date, the group recognises 
goodwill at the acquisition date as:

 The fair value of the consideration (excluding 
contingent consideration) transferred; plus

 Estimated amount of contingent consideration 
(see below); plus

 The fair value of the equity instruments issued; 
plus

 Directly attributable transaction costs; less

 The net recognised amount (generally fair 
value) of the identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, this is recognised and 
separately disclosed on the face of the balance 
sheet as negative goodwill.

Consideration which is contingent on future events 
is recognised based on the estimated amount if 
the contingent consideration is probable and can 
be measured reliably. Any subsequent changes to 
the amount are treated as an adjustment to the 
cost of the acquisition. 

2.9 Intangible assets, goodwill and negative 
goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between amounts 
paid on the cost of a business combination and the 
acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the Group’s 
share of its identifiable assets and liabilities of the 
acquiree at the date of acquisition. Identifiable and 
separable intangible assets will be recognised outside 
of goodwill. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis to the 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
over its useful economic life.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the 
profit and loss account as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities may be 
capitalised if the product or process is technically and 
commercially feasible and the company intends and 
has the technical ability and sufficient resources 
to complete development, future economic benefits 
are probable and if the company can measure 
reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible 
asset during its development. Development activities 
involve design for, construction or testing of the 
production of new or substantially improved 
products or processes. The expenditure capitalised 
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an 
appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised 
borrowing costs. Other development expenditure 
is recognised in the profit and loss account as  

an expense as incurred. Capitalised development 
expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and less accumulated impairment 
losses.

At each reporting date the company assesses 
whether there is any indication of impairment.  
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is determined which is the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
An impairment loss is recognised where the carrying 
amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the profit or loss on  
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of intangible assets. Intangible assets are amortised 
from the date they are available for use. The 
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Capitalised development costs  over 4 to 10 years

Goodwill  over 2 to 5 years

Customer contracts  over 2 years

The company reviews the amortisation period and 
method when events and circumstances indicate 
that the useful life may have changed since the 
last reporting date.

Goodwill and other intangible assets are tested for 
impairment in accordance with Section 27 of FRS 102 
Impairment of assets when there is an indication 
that goodwill or an intangible asset may be impaired.
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Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Impairment

Financial assets (including trade and other debtors) 
A financial asset not carried at fair value through 
profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date  
to determine whether there is objective evidence 
that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if 
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on 
the estimated future cash flows of that asset that 
can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset 
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the 
difference between its carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest 
rate. For financial instruments measured at cost 
less impairment an impairment is calculated as 
the difference between its carrying amount and 
the best estimate of the amount that the company 
would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at 
the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset 
continues to be recognised through the unwinding 
of the discount. Impairment losses are recognised 
in profit or loss. When a subsequent event causes 
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the 
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through 
profit or loss.

Non-financial	assets

The carrying amounts of the entity’s non-financial 
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, then  
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use 
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested 
individually are grouped together into the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash 
inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets  
or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). 
The goodwill acquired in a business combination, 
for the purpose of impairment testing is allocated 
to cash-generating units, or (“CGU”) that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combination. For the purpose of goodwill 
impairment testing, if goodwill cannot be allocated 
to individual CGUs or groups of CGUs on a non-
arbitrary basis, the impairment of goodwill is 
determined using the recoverable amount of the 
acquired entity in its entirety, or if it has been 
integrated then the entire group of entities into 
which it has been integrated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying 
amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses 
recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first 
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the units, and then to reduce the 
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit 
(group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed if and only if the 
reasons for the impairment have ceased to apply. 
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are 
assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.
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Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Employee benefits

Short	term	employee	benefits

Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other 
similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which the service is received.

The Group operates a defined contribution pension 
plan for its employees and a group company also 
operates a defined benefit scheme which is treated 
as a defined contribution scheme for its employees 
(see note 2.17 and note 3).

Termination	benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense 
when the entity is demonstrably committed, without 
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed 
plan to either terminate employment before the 
normal retirement date, or to provide termination 
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage 
voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for 
voluntary redundancies are recognised as an 
expense if the entity has made an offer of voluntary 
redundancy, it is probably that the offer will be 
accepted, and the number of acceptances can be 
estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 
12 months after the reporting date, then they are 
discounted to their present value.

2.12 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the Balance Sheet when 
the entity has a present legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of a past event, that can be 
reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best 
estimate of the amount required to settle the 
obligation at the reporting date.

Where the parent company enters into financial 
guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness 
of other companies within its group, the company 
treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability 
in its individual financial statements until such time 
as it becomes probable that the company will be 
required to make a payment under the guarantee 
(see note 29).

2.13 Turnover

The Group has a number of different types of 
income: Grant income which is recognised as costs 
are incurred. Service income is recognised over time 
as the service is delivered. Payment by results 
income is recognised at a point in time where the 
outcome is confirmed by the commissioner. The 
performance outcomes cannot be reliably measured 
and therefore revenue is only recognised once the 
outcomes are confirmed by the commissioner.

2.14 Expenses

Operating lease

Payments (excluding costs for services and insurance) 
made under operating leases are recognised in 
the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease unless the payments to 
the lessor are structured to increase in line with 

expected general inflation; in which case the 
payments related to the structured increases are 
recognised as incurred. Lease incentives received are 
recognised in profit and loss over the term of the 
lease as an integral part of the total lease expense.

Finance lease

Minimum lease payments are apportioned 
between the finance charge and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability using the rate implicit in the 
lease. The finance charge is allocated to each period 
during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability.

Interest receivable and Interest payable

Interest payable and similar charges include 
interest payable and finance leases recognised in 
profit or loss using the effective interest method 
and unwinding of the discount on provisions that 
are recognised in the profit and loss account (see 
foreign currency accounting policy).

Other interest receivable and similar income 
include interest receivable on funds invested.

Interest income and interest payable are recognised 
in profit or loss as they accrue, using the effective 
interest method. Dividend income is recognised in the 
profit and loss account on the date the entity’s right 
to receive payments is established. Foreign currency 
gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
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Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Government grants

Grants are accounted under the accruals model as 
permitted by FRS 102. Grants relating to expenditure 
on tangible fixed assets are credited to profit or loss 
at the same rate as the depreciation on the assets 
to which the grant relates. The deferred element of 
grants is included in creditors as deferred income.

Grants of a revenue nature are recognised in the 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
in the same period as the related expenditure. 

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises 
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the 
profit and loss account except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised 
directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable 
on the taxable income or loss for the year, using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which 
arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in 
tax assessments in periods different from those in 
which they are recognised in the financial statements. 
The following timing differences are not provided 
for: differences between accumulated depreciation 
and tax allowances for the cost of a fixed asset if 
and when all conditions for retaining the tax 

allowances have been met; and differences relating 
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is 
not probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable 
future and the reporting entity is able to control 
the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax 
is not recognised on permanent differences arising 
because certain types of income or expense are 
non-taxable or are disallowable for tax or because 
certain tax charges or allowances are greater or 
smaller than the corresponding income or expense.

Deferred tax is provided in respect of the additional 
tax that will be paid or avoided on differences 
between the amount at which an asset (other than 
goodwill) or liability is recognised in a business 
combination and the corresponding amount that 
can be deducted or assessed for tax. Goodwill is 
adjusted by the amount of such deferred tax.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is 
expected to apply to the reversal of the related 
difference, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax 
balances are not discounted.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent that is it probable 
that they will be recovered against the reversal of 
deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

2.17 Pensions

Defined	contribution	pension	plan

The Group operates a defined contribution plan 
for its employees. A defined contribution plan is  
a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity. Once the 

contributions have been paid the Group has no 
further payment obligations. The contributions 
are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated 
Statement of Comprehensive Income when they 
fall due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals 
as a liability in the Balance Sheet. The assets of 
the plan are held separately from the Group in 
independently administered funds.

Defined	benefit	pension	plan

A company in the Group operates a defined 
benefit pension scheme where the scheme 
funding levels are contractually capped by the 
Ministry of Justice. This scheme is accounted for 
as a defined contribution scheme in these 
financial statements (see note 3).

2.18 Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss 
in the year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value, being the estimated selling price 
less costs to complete and sell. Cost is based on 
the cost of purchase on a weighted average basis.
Work in progress and finished goods include 
labour and attributable overheads.

At each balance sheet date, stocks are assessed 
for impairment. If stock is impaired, the carrying 
amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to 
complete and sell. The impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.

2.20 Impairment of fixed assets and goodwill

Assets that are subject to depreciation or 
amortisation are assessed at each balance sheet 
date to determine whether there is any indication 
that the assets are impaired. Where there is any 
indication that an asset may be impaired, the 
carrying value of the asset (or cash-generating unit 
to which the asset has been allocated) is tested for 
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for 
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s (or CGU’s) fair 
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the 
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are 
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-
financial assets that have been previously impaired 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess 

whether there is any indication that the impairment 
losses recognised in prior periods may no longer 
exist or may have decreased.

2.21 Valuation of investments

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost 
less accumulated impairment.

3. Accounting estimates and 
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances.

The directors make estimates and assumptions 
concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the 
related actual results. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year 
are addressed below.

Provisions against income

Government contracts form a significant part of 
the Group’s income. Due to extrapolation clauses 
included in the majority of the Group’s contracts, 
the directors have recognised provisions in respect 
of the known clawbacks of income claims due to 
any number of possible factors, some of which 
are beyond the Group’s control.

Prior to Seetec’s ownership, (December 2018) a 
group company was subject to an Article 125 audit 
by the ESF. As a result, the Managing Authority had 
invoked a 100% audit on the grounds that ‘the 
Managing Authority have determined the evidence 
supplied does not meet the evidence requirements 
for ESF to support a job outcome payment’. Although 
the liability back to Europe is to co-funders, they 
will look to their suppliers under their contracts 
for supply of services to provide this evidence.

A provision of £1.248m at 31st March 2021 based 
on the best available information would seem to 
be a prudent position that reflects the uncertainty 
around this liability. The directors consider that 
this estimate should be included in the figures for 
FY20 and carried forward into FY21.
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Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
3. Accounting estimates and 
judgements (continued)

Dilapidations

The group accrues a dilapidations provision against 
reinstatement costs to be incurred when it exits a 
property and hands it back to the landlord. This 
estimate is only accrued on properties where a 
dilapidations clause is included in the terms of the 
lease or equivalent document. The provision is 
calculated on a property by property basis and is 
an amount equal to 6 month’s rent payable on the 
property. This level of provision has been set based 
on an average of historic amounts paid. Where the 
property has been exited and the dilapidations 
amount is in negotiation the provision will be set 
at the value of the landlords claim. Where an amount 
is agreed the provision will be set at the agreed 
amount until it is settled. Once a dilapidations 
figure has been paid on a property or it is agreed 
that no amount is payable any residual provision 
is released to the profit and loss account.

Seetec Employee Ownership Trustee Limited 
(SEOTL)

During the course of the previous year the SEOTL 
was set up to acquire a controlling interest in the 
Ordinary shares of Seetec Business Technology 
Centre Limited. The purpose of the SEOTL is to 
represent the interest of all Seetec employees as 
indirect owners of the business. It is governed by 
an independent board of Trustees which includes 
the Employee Trustee Director.

The Trust is the registered holder of the Trust’s 
51% of the shares in issue in Seetec Business 
Technology Centre Limited. There is no prohibition 
on the exercise of the voting rights attaching to 
the shares held for the benefit of the Trust.

The Trust from time to time could exercise its 
rights under section 168 to remove (or appoint) 
directors to the board of SBTC acting in its capacity 
as a majority shareholder. 

Decisions of the board of SEOTL (Trustee Board) 
as the Trustee are determined by a majority 
decision of the directors of SEOTL.

There are no payments made by the Trust to any 
of the employees within the beneficial ·class of the 
Trust. Remuneration payable to employees of 
SBTC (and any group companies) is entirely a 
matter for SBTC (or the relevant group company).

From the information above, it is the directors’ 
judgement that SEOTL is not under control of the 
company. The Trust has a 51% shareholding, is 
entitled to dividends per the Trust deed (which 
have so far been waived) and has the same rights 
as all other shareholders. The Trust was set up in 
a way to facilitate employee ownership as opposed 
to serve the purposes of Seetec.

Consideration loan notes of £14.345 million in  
the form of the Vendor Loan Notes were issued 
by the SEOTL to the Vendor in part payment. 
Seetec Business Technology Centre Limited have 
provided a guarantee of the loan notes in the 

event that the trustee defaults on the repayment 
obligations in the future. It is the directors’ 
judgement that the possibility of the company 
being called upon to pay this is remote and 
therefore this has not been shown as a liability  
on the Balance Sheet (see note 29).

Goodwill / intangible assets

Goodwill and intangible assets are written down 
over their estimated useful life. Goodwill arising 
on the acquisition is attributed to the estimated 
value of discounted future cashflows generated 
by existing contracts and written down over their 
revenue generating life. Software development 
costs are valued at cost and written down over the 
estimated period for which they will be in use.

Goodwill impairment assessment

In respect of the goodwill attributable to the 
acquisition of the Pluss Group an impairment review 
was carried out at the year end whereby future 
predicted cashflows for the contracts that existed 
at the transfer date were calculated. These future 
cashflows were discounted at a rate of 7.5% and 
the resulting total was compared with the carrying 
value in the financial statements. It was the directors’ 
judgement that no impairment was required.
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4. Turnover

  2021 2020
   £000 £000
Contract Income   109,233  129,325

Services Income   20,212  9,901
   
  129,445  139,226
      

Analysis of turnover by country of destination:

  2021 2020
   £000 £000

Republic of Ireland   13,281  23,048

UK   116,164  116,178
   
  129,445  139,226
      

5. Other operating income
  2021 2020
   £000 £000

Income from property   22  22

Government support   3,414 -
   
  3,436  22            

With regard to the Government support above, £2,752k relates to support from the Government of the Republic     
of Ireland and £662k from the UK Government.

Notes to the financial statements: 
year ended 31 March 2021
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6.	Operating	profit

The operating profit is stated after charging:
  2021 2020
   £000 £000

Amortisation of intangible assets   1,760  826

Depreciation of owned assets   1,120  1,411

Other operating lease rentals   2,544  3,219
      

7. Auditor’s remuneration
  2021 2020
   £000 £000

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor and its associates 
for the audit of the Group’s annual financial statements  200  175         

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor and its associates in respect of:

Taxation compliance services   36  34

Advisory services   89  343

Accounts preparation   10  -         
  135 377            

Notes to the financial statements: 
year ended 31 March 2021
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8. Employees

Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, were as follows:
  Group Group  Company Company 
  2021 2020 2021 2020
   £000 £000 £000  £000  

Wages and salaries   66,201  67,031  9,067  9,649
Social security costs   5,770  5,803  910  988
Cost of defined contribution scheme   3,940  4,354  257  258
     
  75,911  77,188  10,234  10,895          

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the year was as follows:

  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  No.  No.  No.  No.

Operational staff   1,703  1,816  2  22
Administration and management staff   664  617  223  213
     
  2,367  2,433  225  235          
9. Directors’ remuneration
    2021  2020
    £000  £000

Directors’ emoluments     525  890
Company contributions to defined contribution pension schemes    31  32
     
    556  922          

During the year retirement benefits were accruing to 3 directors (2020: 3) in respect  of defined contribution pension schemes.

The highest paid director received remuneration of £198k (2020: £426k).

The value of the company’s contributions paid to a defined contribution pension scheme in respect of the highest paid 
director amounted to £15k (2020: £9k).

Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
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10. Interest receivable

The operating profit is stated after charging:
  2021 2020
   £000 £000

Other interest receivable   47  136
      

11. Interest payable and similar expenses 2021 2020
   £000 £000

Bank interest payable   417  179
Finance leases and hire purchase contracts   8  17   
  425  196       

12. Taxation  2021 2020
   £000 £000
Corporation tax

Current tax on profits for the year   -  651

Adjustments in respect of prior periods  (12)  14

Overseas taxation   323  -
   
Total current tax   311  665      

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences  (8) 62

Adjustments in respect of prior periods   16  29
   
Total deferred tax   8  91            
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities  319  756            

Notes to the financial statements: 
year ended 31 March 2021
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12. Taxation (continued)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is higher than (2020: lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2020: 19%). The differences are explained below:

    2021 2020
     £000 £000

Profit on ordinary activities before tax     142  5,406           
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2020: 19%)   27  1,027

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goodwill amortisation and impairment   743  1,337

Reduction in tax rate on deferred tax balances     -  (29)

Depreciation of excess capital allowances     -  67

Other timing differences     (545) -

Fixed asset differences     12  -

Adjustment to tax charge prior periods     4  -

Changes in provisions leading to an increase (decrease) in the tax charge     -  (146)

Deferred tax asset not recognised     198 (218)

Non-taxable income less expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goodwill and impairment   (6)  (934)

Overseas tax difference     (114)  (348)                        
Total tax charge for the year     319  756           

Factors that may affect future tax charges

On 3 March 2021, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that the main rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom will rise to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023   
for companies earning annual taxable profits in excess of £250,000. Companies earning annual taxable profits of £50,000 or less will continue to pay corporation tax at 
19% with a marginal rate adjustment for companies earning annual taxable profits between the two levels. These changes had not been substantively enacted at the 
Balance Sheet date and therefore no adjustment has been made to deferred taxation balances to account for this change.

Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
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13. Intangible assets

Group  Customer Software
  Contracts Dev’t  Goodwill Total 
   £000 £000 £000  £000  
Cost
At 1 April 2020   1,109  3,961  2,049  7,119
Additions   -  152  -  152      
At 31 March 2021  1,109  4,113  2,049 7,271
     

Amortisation
At 1 April 2020   1,109  1,280  596  2,985

Charge for the year on owned assets   -  941  819  1,760 
     
At 31 March 2021  1,109  2,221  1,415  4,745        

Net book value

At 31 March 2021   -  1,892  634  2,526 
          
At 31 March 2020  -  2,681  1,453  4,134           

Amortisation on intangible assets is charged to administrative expenses.

Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021
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13. Intangible assets (continued)

Company   Software
   Dev’t    
   £000

At 1 April 2020    3,805

Additions     105       
At 31 March 2021    3,910             

Amortisation

At 1 April 2020     1,280  

Charge for the year on owned assets     941    
    

At 31 March 2021    2,221          

Net book value

At 31 March 2021    1,689    
      
At 31 March 2020    2,525          

Notes to the financial statements: 
year ended 31 March 2021
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14.	Tangible	fixed	assets

Group Short-term Plant and  Motor Fixtures
 leasehold property machinery  vehicles and fittings Total 
 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000  
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020  3,857  8,549  1,016  767  14,189
Additions  245  561  -  13  819
Disposals  (1,853)  (4,018)  (85)  (489)  (6,445)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange  (71)  (33)  -  (10)  (114)      
At 31 March 2021 2,178  5,059  931  281  8,449
     

Depreciation
At 1 April 2020  2,761  6,967 703  657  11,088
Charge for the year on owned assets  272  726  71  51  1,120
Disposals  (1,777)  (4,018)  (67)  (488)  (6,350)

Effect of movements in foreign exchange  (37)  (33)  -  (6)  (76) 
     
At 31 March 2021 1,219  3,642  707  214  5,782
     

Net book value

At 31 March 2021  959  1,417  224  67  2,667 
          
At 31 March 2020 1,096  1,582  313  110  3,101             
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14.	Tangible	fixed	assets	(continued)

Group Short-term Plant and  Motor Fixtures
 leasehold property machinery  vehicles and fittings Total 
 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000  
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020  1,873  4,224  169  497  6,763
Additions  245  15  -  -  260
Disposals  (1,839)  (4,018)  (60)  (489)  (6,406)
     
At 31 March 2021 279  221  109  8  617
     

Depreciation
At 1 April 2020  1,758  4,054  99  489  6,400
Charge for the year on owned assets  32  111  27  5  175
Disposals  (1,777)  (4,018)  (60)  (488)  (6,343)
     
At 31 March 2021 13  147  66  6  232
     

Net book value

At 31 March 2021  266  74  43  2  385 
          
At 31 March 2020 115  170  70  8  363             
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15. Fixed asset investments

Company   Investments in
   subsidiary companies   
   £000
Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2020    1,642
   
At 31 March 2021    1,642             

Amortisation

At 1 April 2020     1,288  

Charge for the period     354    
    

At 31 March 2021    1,642          

Net book value

At 31 March 2021    -    
      
At 31 March 2020    354          
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15. Fixed asset investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

The following were subsidiary undertakings of the company:

Name   Country of 
  incorporation  Principal activity Class of shares  Holding

Seetec Human Resource Development Limited  UK  Dormant  Ordinary  100%

Seetec Employment Limited   UK  Dormant  Ordinary  100%

The Kent, Surrey and Sussex Community  Rehabilitation Company LTD UK  Probation services  Ordinary  100%

Seetec Employment and Skills Ireland Designated Activity Company Ireland  Employment services  Ordinary  100%

Digital Youth Academy Limited  UK  Dormant  Ordinary  100%

Outsource Education Group Limited  UK  Dormant  Ordinary  100%

Outsource Vocational Learning Limited  UK  Skills training  Ordinary  100%

Outsource Training and Development Limited   UK  Skills training  Ordinary  100%

Advanced Policing Solutions Limited   UK  Skills training  Ordinary  100%

Seetec Pluss Limited   UK Employment services  Ordinary  100%

The Pluss Organisation CIC   UK  Employment services Ordinary  100%

Abilities Limited  UK Dormant  Ordinary  100%

Pluss Limited   UK  Dormant  Ordinary  100%

Seetec Outsource Training and Skills Limited   UK  Skills training  Ordinary  100%

Seetec Justice Limited   UK  Dormant  Ordinary  100% 

The registered office of the subsidiary undertakings is 75-77 Main Road, Hockley, Essex, SS5 4RG, other than Seetec Employment Skills Ireland whose registered office 
is 1 Stokes Place, St Stephens Green, Dublin.

The company has given a guarantee under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006 for the financial period ending 31st March 2021 in respect of Seetec Outsource 
Training and Skills Limited (registration number 12077291), Seetec Human Resource Development Limited (registration number 02465422), Outsource Vocational Learning 
Limited (registration number 04124818) and Advanced Policing Solutions Limited (registration number 07627598), all 100% subsidiaries. As such for the period ending
31st March 2021 these Companies were entitled to exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies.
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16. Stocks
     Group  Group 
    2021 2020
     £000  £000

Raw materials and consumables     123  88

Work in progress (goods to be sold)     126  102

Finished goods and goods for resale     30  52
     
     279  242          
The difference between purchase price or production cost of stocks and their replacement cost is not material.

17. Debtors

  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  £000  £000  £000  £000

Trade debtors   9,524  7,620  827  935

Amounts owed by group undertakings   -  -  5,384  8,076

Amounts owed by related parties   836  -  900  -

Other debtors   350  784  104  344

Prepayments and accrued income   7,784  7,345  1,340  1,132

Tax recoverable   3,447  2,927  -  -

Deferred taxation   347  355  140  174

Grants receivable   174  64  -  -
     
  22,462  19,095  8,695  10,661          
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18. Cash and cash equivalents
  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  £000  £000  £000  £000

Unrestricted cash   13,610  6,166  860  167

Restricted funds   440  181  -  -

Less: bank overdrafts   (1,838)  (523)  (1,838)  (523)
     
  12,212  5,824  (978)  (356)          

The restricted funds represent cash held in respect of Big Lottery Fund and ESF Building Better Opportunities Grants.

19. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  £000  £000  £000  £000
Bank overdrafts   1,838  523  1,838  523
Bank loans   4,583  5,333  3,333  4,083
Trade creditors   7,068  3,862  1,263  1,053
Amounts owed to group undertakings   -  -  10  28
Corporation tax   2  283  -  283
Other taxation and social security   8,682  4,292  576  88
Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts  85  167  14  31
Other creditors   453  784  -  150
Accruals and deferred income   9,970  5,283  1,034  1,177
     
  32,681  20,527  8,068  7,416          

Outstanding finance leases are secured against the corresponding assets.

In order to facilitate the purchase of a controlling interest in the shares of the company by Seetec Employee Ownership Trustee Limited, on December 9th 2019,   
the company took out a loan of £10m secured against trade and subsidiary undertakings.
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20. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 

  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  £000  £000  £000  £000

Bank loans   2,500  5,833  2,500  5,833

Net obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts  30  114  -  13
     
  2,530  5,947  2,500  5,846          

The bank loans above are secured against trade and subsidiary undertakings of the Group.

21. Loans
The Group has two loans with Barclays Bank totalling £11.2m (2020: £11.2m).

One loan for £1,250,000 was a revolving loan with no repayment instalments and was repayable in full on 31st March 2021, the interest rate on this loan is 2.6% above the 
Bank of England Base rate. This was repaid in full in April 2021.

The second loan for £9,916,000 is payable over the period until 10th December 2022. The interest rate on the loan is LIBOR + 3.25%.

The bank loans above are secured against trade and subsidiary undertakings of the Group.

  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  £000  £000  £000  £000

Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans   4,583  5,333  3,333  4,083

Amounts falling due 1-2 years
Bank loans   2,500  3,333  2,500  3,333

Amounts falling due 2-5 years
Bank loans   -  2,500  -  2,500
     
  7,083  11,166  5,833  9,916          
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22.	Hire	purchase	and	finance	leases

Minimum lease payments under hire purchase fall due as follows:
     Group Group 
    2021 2020
     £000  £000

Within one year     85  167

Between 1-5 years     30  114
     
     115 281          

23. Financial instruments

  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  £000  £000  £000  £000
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value   14,050  6,347 860  167
Financial assets measured at amortised cost   11,190  8,468  9,154  9,709
     
  25,240  14,815  10,014  9,876          
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at fair value   (1,838)  (523)  (1,838)  (523)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost   (24,791)  (21,376)  (10,094)  (12,368)
     
  (26,629)  (21,899)  (11,932)  (12,891)          

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise cash and cash equivalents.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise investments, trade debtors, amounts owed by group undertakings, grants receivables, and other debtors.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise bank loans, hire purchase, trade creditors, amounts owed to group undertakings, other creditors and accruals.
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24. Deferred taxation

Group      
    2021 2020
     £000  £000

At beginning of year     355  232

Charged to the profit or loss     (8)  (91)

Arising on business combinations     -  214
     
At end of year     347  355          

Company      
    2021 2020
     £000  £000

At beginning of year     174  232

Charged to profit or loss     (34)  (58)
     
At end of year     140  174          

  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  £000  £000  £000  £000

Accelerated capital allowances   347  355  140  174           

Deferred tax assets represent the timing differences arising on various costs and provisions incurred by the company in advance of corporation tax relief being available.
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25. Provisions

Group   Property dilapidations EVT Provision Pension Strain  Total
  £000  £000  £000  £000

At 1 April 2020   281  1,248  628  2,157
Charged to profit or loss   749  -  -  749
     
At 31 March 2021   1,030  1,248  628  2,906          

26. Share capital    2021 2020
     £000  £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
6,660,000 (2020: 6,660,000) Ordinary shares of £0.10 each    666  666           

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the company.

27. Reserves
Capital redemption reserve
This reserve records the nominal value of shares repurchased by the company.

Profit and loss account
This reserve represents all current and prior periods retained profits and losses.

28. Analysis of net debt   At 1 April 2020 Cashflows At 31 March 2021
    £000  £000  £000

Cash at bank and in hand    6,347  7,703  14,050
Bank overdrafts    (523)  (1,315)  (1,838)
Debt due after 1 year    (5,833)  3,333  (2,500)
Debt due within 1 year    (5,333)  750  (4,583)
Finance leases    (281)  166  (115)
     
   (5,623)  10,637  5,014          
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29. Contingent liabilities
In the prior year, Seetec Employee Ownership Trustee Limited (SEOTL) was set up  
to acquire a controlling interest in the Ordinary shares of SBTC Limited.

Consideration loan notes of £14.345 million in the form of the Vendor Loan Notes 
were issued by SEOTL to the Vendor of shares in part payment of the purchase price. 
Seetec Business Technology Centre Limited have provided a guarantee of the loan 
notes in the event that the trustee defaults on the repayment obligations in the future.

Interest at 3.25% above the published Barclays base rate is payable by SEOTL for 
these loan notes on the 3rd, 5th and 7th anniversary with the capital falling due on 
the 7th anniversary or such later date as may be agreed in writing.

The directors consider the possibility of the company being called upon to pay this 
is improbable as SEOTL has multiple options available to it for obtaining the funds it 
needs to settle this debt and therefore this has not been shown as a liability on the 
Balance Sheet.

30. Pension commitments
The Group operates a defined contributions pension scheme. The assets of the scheme 
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. 
The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Group to the fund 
and amounted to £3.9m (2020: £4.4m). Contributions totalling £179k (2020: £276k) 
were payable to the fund at the Balance Sheet date and are included in creditors.

The Group entered into an agreement with the Ministry of Justice, as part of the 
overall contract for the Transforming Rehabilitation services, to contribute 14% in 
respect of eligible employees to a defined benefit pension scheme held in the Greater 
Manchester Local Government Pension Fund. The agreement is underwritten by the 
MoJ who are also contracted to a reimburse any liability, resulting in a £nil surplus 
or deficit at the year-end.

In the current year, this multi-employer defined benefit scheme has been accounted 
for as a defined contribution scheme per FRS 102.28.11 with no liability recognised 
as there is insufficient information to enable an accurate and reliable estimation of 
the liability. The Group is not liable to the plan for other entities’ obligations.

Notes to the financial statements: year ended 31 March 2021

31. Commitments under operating leases
At 31 March 2021 the Group and the company had future minimum lease payments due under noncancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:

  Group  Group  Company  Company
  2021 2020 2021 2020 
  £000  £000  £000  £000

Not later than 1 year   1,531  2,288  116  408
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years   2,266  2,685  29  280
Later than 5 years   6  273  -  -
     
  3,803  5,246  145  688          

During the year £2,579k was recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in respect of operating leases (2020: £3,219k).

Seetec Group In Review | 2021 77



32. Related party transactions
Group

P A Cooper, a director of the group, was owed £Nil 
(2020: £2,091) at the year end.

Seetec Employee Trust, which is under the influence of 
the Group, owed the Group £206,702 (2020: £270,385) 
at the Balance Sheet date.

Seetec Employee Ownership Trust, the ultimate 
controlling party for the group, owed the Group 
£160,880 (2020: £Nil) at the Balance Sheet date.

South East Essex Technology Centre (Your Ambition),   
a company controlled by a director, owed the Group 
£468,822 (2020: £Nil) at the Balance Sheet date.

Seetec Properties Limited, a company controlled by a 
director, charged the Group market rent and insurance 
totalling £87,066 (2020: £69,867). At the Balance Sheet 
date the Group owed Seetec Properties Limited 
£15,268 (2020: £Nil).

During the year, £Nil (2020: 41.5 million) was gifted to 
the now 51% Shareholder of the company, the Seetec 
Employee Ownership Trustee Limited. This has then 
been utilised in part consideration to the previous 
shareholder.

Total compensation of key management personnel 
(including the directors) in the year amounted to 
£1,933,513 (2020: £2,061,802).

Company

P A Cooper, a director of the company, was owed £Nil 
(2020: £2,091) at the year end.

Seetec Employee Trust, which is under the influence   
of the company, owed the company £270,385 (2020: 
£270,385) at the Balance Sheet date.

Seetec Employee Ownership Trust, the ultimate 
controlling party for the company, owed the company 
£160,880 (2020: £Nil) at the Balance Sheet date.

South East Essex Technology Centre (Your Ambition),   
a company controlled by a director, owed the company 
£468,822 (2020: £Nil) at the Balance Sheet date.

Seetec Properties Limited, a company controlled by   
a director, charged the company market rent and 
insurance totalling £87,066 (2020: £69,867). At the 
Balance Sheet date the company owed Seetec 
Properties Limited £15,268 (2020: £Nil).

During the year, £Nil (2020: £41.5 million) was gifted   
to the now 51% Shareholder of the company, the 
Seetec Employee Ownership Trustee Limited. This has 
then been utilised to pay in part consideration due   
to the previous shareholder.

Transactions with fellow 100% group companies   
have not been disclosed as the company has taken 
advantage of the exemption under FRS 102.

33. Controlling party
At the Balance Sheet date, Seetec Employee Ownership 
Trustee Limited is the ultimate controlling party by virtue 
of his 51% shareholding in the ultimate parent company 
Seetec Business Technology Centre Limited.
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